

Title: Professor Emeritus, Department of Biology

Research Professor, Department of Biology

Additional Positions: Editor, *Acoustics Today*

Editor, Springer Handbook of Auditory Research

Address: Department of Biology

University of Maryland College Park, MD 20742

Phone: (301) 842-4327 **E-Mail**: apopper@umd.edu

Web Sites: Lab: www.popperlab.umd.edu

Terrapin Teachers: www.terrapinteachers.umd.edu

Acoustics Today: www.acousticstoday.org

Springer Handbook of Auditory Research: http://www.springer.com/series/2506

Table of Contents

Research Interests	2
Professional Experience (Academic)	2
Education	
Courses Taught	2
Awards And Honors	
Membership In Learned And Professional Societies	3
Grant Support	3
External Responsibilities	5
Major University Committees and Administrative Responsibilities	6
Students Supervised	8
Publications (Research)	
Books	
Other Publications	30
Conferences and Symposia Organized	
Abstracts and Presentations (Selected)	
nvited Presentations (Selected)	
Recent Public Service and Consulting	41
Recent Reports	42
	43
Courses Taught at University of Maryland	45

Research Interests

My interests focus on the effects of man-made (or anthropogenic) noise on aquatic life, with particular focus on effects of such sounds on fishes. This interest allows me to take advantage of my decades of basic research on fish hearing capabilities and mechanisms and apply them to issues that have the potential to directly affect behavior and physiology of animals as the noise levels in the aquatic environment increases. Recent studies have included effects of very intense man-made signals (pile driving, seismic air guns) as well as general increase in background noise levels (as from shipping and aquaculture). I also am very involved in working with U.S. and international institutions in evaluating overall effects of the increase in man-made noise on animals. This includes being organizer of three international meetings on effects of noise on aquatic life. I also serve as editor of two major publications, the Springer Handbook of Auditory Research and the journal Acoustics Today.

Professional Experience (Academic)

2014 – present:	Professor Emeritus, Department of Biology, University of Maryland
2014 – present:	Research Professor, Department of Biology, University of Maryland
2014 - 2018:	Co-Director (and co-founder), Terrapin Teachers program for developing STEM k-12 teachers
2013 – 2016:	Special Advisor for STEM, Graduate School, University of Maryland
2009 - 2013:	Associate Dean, Graduate School, University of Maryland
2004 - 2009:	Associate Dean, College of Chemical and Life Sciences, University of Maryland
1987 - 2014:	Professor, Department of Biology (formerly Zoology), University of Maryland
1987 - 1997:	Chair, Department of Zoology, University of Maryland, College Park, MD
1983 - 1987:	Professor, Department of Anatomy and Cell Biology, Georgetown University Schools of
	Medicine and Dentistry
1978 - 1983:	Associate Professor, Department of Anatomy, Georgetown University, Washington, DC
1973 - 1978:	Associate Professor, Department of Zoology, University of Hawai'i
1972 - 1978:	Associate Zoologist, Laboratory of Sensory Sciences, University of Hawai'i
1969 - 1972:	Assistant Professor, Department of Zoology, University of Hawaii, Honolulu, Hawai'i
1966 - 1969:	Teaching Assistant, Queens College and City College of the City University of New York
1966 - 1969:	Department of Animal Behavior, American Museum of Natural History, New York. Doctoral
	research on auditory mechanisms and acoustic behavior of fishes

Education

B.A. (Biology), 1964, New York University, Bronx, NY Ph.D. (Biology), 1969, City University of New York

Courses Taught

University of Hawaii

Vertebrate Zoology (comparative anatomy) (undergraduate)

Ethology (undergraduate)

Evolution (undergraduate/graduate)

Animal Behavior (graduate)

Seminar in Sensory Biology

Seminar in Animal Communications

Georgetown University

Dental Neurobiology (organized course and was course director for 2 years)

Medical Neurobiology (course director)

Seminar in Computer Programming

Seminar in Grant Writing

University of Maryland

Neural Basis of Behavior (seminar)

Neuroethology (undergraduate and graduate)

Principles of Biology (Freshman Biology)

Ethics in Scientific Research

Vertebrate Form and Function

Noise, Life, and the Environment (Honors seminar)

Awards And Honors

NIH Predoctoral Fellowship

NIH Research Career Development Award (1978-1983)

Fellow, American Association for the Advancement of Science (1983)

Outstanding Administrator, special recognition award from Maryland Association of Higher Education (1991)

Fellow, Acoustical Society of America (1994)

Outstanding Faculty Research, College of Life Sciences, University of Maryland (1996)

Distinguished Scholar-Teacher, University of Maryland (1999-2000)

Federal Highway Administration 2005 Environmental Excellence Award - for Excellence in Ecosystems, Habitat, and Wildlife: Fisheries-Hydroacoustics Mitigation for San Francisco Bay Bridges/Bioacoustics Workgroup (htp://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/eea2005/ecosystems.htm)

University System of Maryland Regent's Faculty Award for Mentoring (2010) (http://www.diamondbackonline.com/news/keeping-faculty-afloat-1.1429575)

Membership In Learned And Professional Societies

Acoustical Society of America (Fellow) American Association for the Advancement of Science (Fellow) Association for Research in Otolaryngology International Society for Neuroethology

Grant Support

Current

Living Marine Programs (LMR, US Navy) "The Effects of Underwater Explosions on Fishes" 2016-2021, Total Award \$1,250,000) (PI Peter Dahl, U. Washington, role: co-PI and project leader).

Past

National Math + Science Initiative "Terrapin Teachers – A Replication of UTeach at the University of Maryland," 2014-2019, Total Award \$1,450,000 (Arthur Popper and Daniel Chazan, co-PI's)

Various funding for "Fourth International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life." Dublin, Ireland, July 10-16, 2016. PI on funding from ONR, NASA, NSF, BOEM, and private organizations.

National Institute on Deafness and Other Communication Disorders: Training Grant "Comparative and Evolutionary Biology of Hearing," 1994-1999, 1999-2004, 2004-2009, 2009-2014 (1 T32 DC 00046). Total current Award \$3,680,000. (PI, Robert Dooling Co-PI)

Naval Postgraduate School "Third International Conference on Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, 1/2013-4/2014 (N00244-13-1-0015) Total Award \$30,000

National Science Foundation "Conference on Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, 10/1/2012-3/31/2014 (OCE-1247301) Total Award \$32,730

National Institute on Deafness and Other Communication Disorders: "Core Center," 2003-2008, 2008-20013, (2 P30 DC004664) Total award \$2,350,000 (Robert Dooling PI, Arthur Popper Co-PI)

Mineral Management Service (MMS): "Effects of pile driving sounds on auditory and non-auditory tissues of fish: 6/9/08-1/15/13. Total Award, \$920,000. (PI, Michele Halorsen Co-PI)

Office of Naval Research: "Second International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," 10/1/2009-9/31/2010. Total Award, \$24,999. (PI)

- Minerals Management Service: "Second International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," 10/1/2009-12/31/2010. Total Award, \$50,000. (PI)
- National Science Foundation: "EESE: Maryland Initiative on Research Ethics," 9/1/06-8/31/10, Total award \$198,344 (Arthur Popper PI, Phil DeShong and Robert Dooling Co-PI's).
- National Science Foundation: "Second International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," 10/1/2009-9/31/2010. Total Award, \$45,000. (PI)
- Marine Mammal Commission: "Second International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," 9/1/2009-12/31/2010. Total Award, \$10,000. (PI)
- Department of Fisheries and Oceans (Canada, Arctic Region): "Second International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," 1/1/2010-9/31/2010. Total Award, \$13,595. (PI)
- Pacific Northwest Labs: "Predicting and mitigating hydroacoustic impacts on fish from pile installations," 4/1/06-3/31/09. Total Award, \$150,000.
- National Science Foundation: "Working group on the effects of sound on fish and turtles," 2/1/07-1/31/09, Total Award, \$40,000 (via Mote Marine Laboratory)
- Chief of Naval Operations (N45): "Effects of mid-frequency sonar on fishes," 4/1//06-3/31/08. Total Award, \$1,290,401.
- National Science Foundation: "Acquisition of Analytical Spectrometers for the Creation of a Regional Electron Microscopy Facility for Research and Education," 9/1/06-8/31/07, Total award \$500,000 (L. Salamanca-Riba, PI, Arthur Popper Co-PI).
- Chief of Naval Operations (Marine Acoustics Inc.): "Effects of high intensity sound," 10/03-3/07. Total Award \$672,000.
- Office of Naval Research: "International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Marine Animals," 11/06/06 6/30/08, Total Award \$24,992.
- Office of Naval Research Global: "International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Marine Animals," 11/16/06 8/16/08, Total Award \$15,000.
- National Science Foundation: International conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Animals, "12/15/06 8/30/08, Total Award, \$24,992.
- Army Corps of Engineers (Normandeau Associates): "Evaluating the Effects of Underwater Noise on the Hearing Sensitivity of Hatchery Chinook Salmon Smolts Barged from the Snake River Basin," 4/1/05-3/31/05, Total Award \$114.250.
- The Conservation Fund: "Effects of aquaculture sounds on fishes, "7/04-12/05. Total award \$50,000 National Institute on Deafness and Other Communicative Disorders: "Mechanisms of Ultrasound Detection," 2/99-7/05 (1 R01 DC03936). Total Award \$1,340,000.
- National Institute on Deafness and Other Communication Disorders: "Hearing in Zebrafish," 5/2002-4/2004 (DC-05481). Total Award \$75,000 (Robert Dooling Co-PI).
- Public Service Environmental Group "The Auditory System of Sciaenid Fishes," 7/00-6/02. Total Award \$104,747.
- Maryland Higher Education Commission: "Enrichment of High School Biology Programs in Maryland," 1990-2000 (Dwight D. Eisenhower Mathematics and Science Education Act, P.L. 100-297) (90-03-214 214). Total award over 10 years \$1,090,994; current year: \$99,500.
- National Institute on Aging: "Development and Aging in the Auditory System," 1998-1999 (AG015681). Total Award \$74,000.
- National Science Foundation: "Mechanisms of Hearing by Clupeid Fishes," 1996-1999 (IBN9631354). Total Award \$170,000.
- Office of Naval Research: "Sound Localization by Fish: Mechanisms and Models" 1994-1997 (N-00014-94-10410). Total Award \$340,506.
- Battelle Pacific Northwest Laboratories: "The Structure of the Octavolateralis System in Salmonids: Ontogeny," 1996-1997. Total Award \$79,994.
- Office of Naval Research: Workshop on Hearing and Acoustic Behavior of Cetaceans, 1995-1996 (N00014-96-1-0130). Total Award \$2,250.
- National Aeronautics and Space Administration: "Evolution of Gravity Receptors in the Ear," 1992-1996 (NAG 2-787). Total Award \$155,000.
- Office of Naval Research: "Effects of Sounds on Hair Cell Receptor Systems of Fish." 1992-1994 (N-00014-92-J-1889). Total Award \$167,332.

- Office of Naval Research: "Acoustic Transduction in Fish, 1987-1994 (N-00014-92-J-1114). Total Award \$113,610.
- Office of Naval Research: "US-Russian Workshop on Sensory Biology," 1993-1994. Total Award \$28.000.
- National Science Foundation: "US-Russian Workshop on Sensory Biology," 1993-1994. Total Award \$32,000.
- Office of Naval Research: "Workshop on Recent Advances in Studies of Fish Hearing, 1991-1993. Total Award \$20,000.
- National Science Foundation: "Research Experience for Undergraduates in Neurobiology and Behavior," 1991-1994. Total Award \$149,000.
- National Institute of Neurological and Communicative Disorders and Stroke: "Sensory Hair Cell Development in the Ear," 1984-1987 (RO1 NS-21646). Total Award \$209,003.
- Office of Naval Research: "Acoustic Transduction in Fish," 1980-1986. Total Award \$223,253.
- Office of Naval Research: "Electron Microscopic Examination of Biological Tissue," Multi-User Equipment Grant, 1984-1985. Total Award \$122,000
- National Science Foundation: "Conference on Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals, 1984-1986. Total Award \$10,000.
- Office of Naval Research: "Conference on Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals," 1984-1986 (N-0014-84-G-0107). Total Award \$14,999.
- National Institutes of Health, Division of Research Resources: "Access to the Prophet Computing System, 1980-1987.
- National Science Foundation: "Ultrastructure and Development of the Ear, 1982-1985. Total Award \$95,000.
- National Science Foundation: "Ultrastructure of the Ear in Fishes, 1980-1982. Total Award \$87,356.
- National Science Foundation: "Multi-user Equipment Grant for the Study of Sensory and Other Systems,@ 1980-1981 (P. Andrews, Co-P.I.). Total Award \$90,000.
- National Science Foundation: "Conference on Hearing and Sound Communication in Fishes, 1980-1981 (with R. R. Fay and W. N. Tavolga). Total Award \$10,000.
- National Institute of Neurological and Communicative Disorders and Stroke: "Physiological Determinations of Inner Ear Function, Research Career Development Award, 1978-1983. Total Award \$197,155.
- National Science Foundation: "Ultrastructure of the Ear in Fishes," 1977-1980. Total Award \$93,400.
- Deafness Research Foundation: "Hair Cell Orientation in the Ear," 1977-1979. Total Award \$9,500.
- Office of Naval Research: "Sound Localization by the Bottlenose Porpoise," 1974-1977. Total Award \$123,200.
- National Institute of Neurological and Communicative Disorders and Stroke: "Processing of Acoustic Information," 1970-1992. Total Award \$1.2 million (seven competing renewals).

External Responsibilities

Past Responsibilities

Editorial Board, Experimental Biology, 1985-1989

Committee on Low-Frequency Sound and Marine Mammals, National Research Council, 1992-1994 Acoustical Society of America, Animal Bio-Acoustics Technical Specialty Group, 1991-1998

Advisor, Committee on Hearing, Bioacoustics, and Biomechanics of the National Research Council, 1985-1995

External Reviewer, Department of Zoology, The Ohio State University, 1995

Program Committee, Association for Research in Otolaryngology, 1993-1996

Newsletter Editor, International Society for Neuroethology, 1996-1998

Chair, Ad Hoc Committee on Publications of Association for Research in Otolaryngology to look into development of society journal, 1998-1999

Editorial Board, Hearing Research, 1994-1999

Editorial Board, Acta Zoologica, 1982-2000

Chair, National Research Council Committee to Review Results of ATOC's Marine Mammal Research Program, 1995-2000

External Reviewer, Department of Biology, Rutgers University (Camden campus), 2000 Secretary, International Society for Neuroethology, 1998-2001

National Research Council Committee on Assessing Ambient Noise in the Ocean with Regard to Impacts on Marine Mammals, 2001-2003

Council Delegate from Section on Biological Sciences (G) of American Association for the Advancement of Science, 2001-2004

American Editor, *Bioacoustics*, 1987-2005

Consulting Editor, McGraw-Hill Encyclopedia in Science with responsibility for developing neuroscience articles, 1998-2005

Co-Chair, Publications Committee, Association for Research in Otolaryngology, 1999-2007 Chair, Long Range Planning Committee, International Society for Neuroethology, 2001-2007

International Organizing Committee, 4th International Otolith Symposium, Monterey, CA, Aug. 24-28, 2009.

Member, Fisheries Hydroacoustics Working Group (California Department of Transportation), 2004-2008

Member, Committee on Animal Bioacoustics, Acoustical Society of America, 2006-2009

Organizer, 2nd International Conference on Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, Cork, Ireland, August 2010

Organizer, 10th meeting of International Society for Neuroethology, August 2012, College Park, Maryland (www.icn2012.umd.edu)

Organizer, third international meeting on "The Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life" held in Budapest, Hungary, August 11-16, 2013 (www.an2013.org)

Co-Chair, Working Group S3/WG92 on "Effects of Sound on Fish and Turtles" of the Standards Committee S3 of the Acoustical Society of America, 2005-2014

Editorial Board, Bioacoustics, 2005-2018

Member, ASA Standards Technical Council WG3 "Measurement of radiated noise from marine pile driving" 2014-2018

Current

Editor, Springer Handbook of Auditory Research, 1989-present

Member of Advisory Panel to "Discovery of Sound in the Sea" web site (www.dosits.org) 2011- present Member, Animal Bioacoustics Technical Committee, Acoustical Society of America, 2012- present Associate Editor (Animal Bioacoustics), *Journal of the Acoustical Society of America*, 2013- present Coordinating Editor for Animal Bioacoustics, *Journal of the Acoustical Society of America*, 2016- present

Editorial Board (ex officio), Acoustical Society of America Books, 2013- present

Editor, Acoustics Today, 2014- present

Ad Hoc reviewer for numerous journals and funding agencies

Major University Committees and Administrative Responsibilities

Georgetown University

Chair, Anatomy Graduate Advisory Committee, 1980-1985

Department of Microbiology Review Committee (member), 1982

Department of Anatomy Personnel Committee (member), 1982-1986

Course Director for Medical Neurobiology, 1982-1987

Medical Center Council (governing body of Medical Center) (member), 1983

Search Committee for Chair of Department of Ophthalmology (member), 1983

Course Director and Organizer for Dental Neurobiology, 1982-1984

Search Committee for Dean of the School of Medicine (member), 1984-1985

Co-Chair, Medical School Task Force on Curriculum Revision, 1985-1986

Student Academic Evaluation Committee, School of Dentistry (member), 1984-1987

Faculty Senator, 1986-1987

Search Committee for Chair of Department of Pharmacology (member), 1986-1987

Georgetown University Committee on Science (member), 1986-1987

Chair, Department of Anatomy Personnel Committee, 1986-1987

Faculty Senate Steering Committee, 1986-1987

University of Maryland (selected, past)

Chair, Search Committee for Associate Dean for Resident Instruction, 1987-1989

Chair, Search Committee for Director of Molecular and Cellular Biology Program, 1988-1989

Committee on "Distinguished Lecture Series," 1988-2002

APAC (Academic Planning Advisory Committee, 1988-1991

Steering Committee, Faculties Master Plan for College Park Campus, 1988-1991

Chair, Honors Program Director search committee, 1988-1990

Department Leadership Institute Planning Committee, 1988-1989

Local Planning Committee, ICSEB-IV, 1988-1990

Search Committee, Director CEES, 1989-1990

Campus Distinguished Lecture Series Committee, 1990-1995

Review Committee-College of Library and Information Services, 1991

Reallocation Committee, 1991

Associate Director, Center for Neurosciences, 1989-1993; Acting Director, 1990-1991

Presenter, UMCP New Chairs Conference, 1990-1996

UMCP Honorary Degree Committee, 1991-1994

Chair, Search Committee for Chair of the Department of Human Nutrition and Food Services, 1992-1993

Search Committee, Chair of Department of Psychology, 1992-1993

Leader, Department Chairperson Workshop, University of Maryland at College Park, August 1990-1997

Discussant, Department Chairperson Workshop, University of Maryland System, October, 1994

Continuing Education Coordination Committee, 1994-1995

Grant application committee-NSF Proposal for Integration of Science and Education, 1996

Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee (IACUC), 1997-1998

Chair, University System of Maryland (USM) Committee on Cooperative Graduate Programs, 1998-

Graduate Council Research Committee, 1998-2000

Campus Affairs Committee of Campus Senate, 1998-2000

College Committee on National Research Council Review, 1999-2000

Campus Senate Nominations Committee, 1999

Chair, Biology Department Retreat Planning Committee, 1999-2000

Chair, Biology Department Molecular Neurobiology Search, 1999-2000

Campus Senate, 1999-2000

Member, Campus Bio-Science Research Review Day Committee, 2000)

Chair, Biology Department Long Range Planning Committee, 2000-2002

Member, Campus Teaching Facilities Committee, 2000-2002

Member, Department of Biology Faculty Advisory Committee, 2001-2002

Member, University Senate Executive Committee, 2001-2003

Chair, Senate PCC Committee, 2002-2003

Campus Committee on Awards and Prizes, 1994-2002

Chair, Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee (IACUC), 1998-2003

Director, Neuroscience and Cognitive Science Program, 1998-2004

Co-Chair, Graduate School's Committee on Mentorship, 2001-2003 (with R. Dooling)

Member, Campus Research Council, 2000-2004

Chair-Elect, University Senate, 2003-2004

Member, President's Task Force on Academic Affairs, 2003-2004

Member, Academic Planning and Advisory Committee, 2003-2004

Member, Facilities Council, 2003-2004

Chair, Department of Biology Sensory Physiology Search Committee, 2004-2005

Co-Chair, Campus Task Force on Mentoring of Junior Faculty 2003-2005

Chair, University Senate, 2004-2005

Member, University Senate Governmental Affairs Committee, 2003-2005

Chair, University Senate Governmental Affairs Committee, 2005-2006

Member, Task Force on External Funding, 2005-2007

Oversee University preparation for Middle States accreditation, 2005-2007

Chair, Steering and Organizational Committees, University of Maryland Middle States accreditation, 2005-2007

Member, University Senate, 2001-2004, 2005-2008

Member, Athletic Council, 2005-2008

Member, Senate Executive Committee, 2005-2008

Member, Campus Affairs Committee (University Senate), 2008-2009

Distinguished Scholar-Teacher Selection Committee, 2008, 2009

Council Academic Deans for Graduate Education (CADGE), 2008-2010

Senate/President Joint Task Force on Merit Pay, 11/2009-2010

Director of Environmental Safety Search Committee, 11/2009-2010

Member, Council of University System Faculty (CUSF), 2008-2011

Member, Faculty Affairs Committee (University Senate), 2009-2012

Member (ex officio), Academic Policies and Standards (University Senate), 2010-2012

Member (ex officio), Senate PCC, 2011-2012

Member (liaison), Faculty Affairs Committee of Graduate Council, 2010-2012

Member, Executive Committee, Neuroscience & Cognitive Science Program, 2010-2012

Co-Director, Center for Comparative and Evolutionary Biology of Hearing, 2001-2014

Member, Biology Department Awards Committee, 2010- 2014

Presenter in monthly campus-wide program in Responsible Conduct of Research training, 2009-

Member, Graduate Council, 2013-2015

Member, Research Council, 2013-2014

University of Maryland (current)

Maryland Emeritus/Emerita Association (UMEEA) of the University of Maryland (College Park) (Founding member and member of Steering Committee), 2015-present

Students Supervised

University of Hawaii

Anna-Mae Sliz, M.S., 1972, "The Role of the Swim bladder in Sound Detection"

Elsie Gillary, M.S., 1973, "Vision in Strombid Gastropods"

Donna McDonald-Renaud, Ph.D., 1974, "Sound Localization in The Bottlenose Porpoise, *Tursiops truncatus*"

Nancy Clarke, M.S., 1974, "Laser Interferometric Analysis of Swim Bladder Function"

Usanee Limbasuta, M.S., 1974, "Development of Tuna"

John Henderson, M.S., 1974, "Visual Mechanisms in Strombus"

Patrick Moore, M.S., 1975, "Sound Localization by Pinnipeds"

Becky Houck, Ph.D., 1977, "A Morphological and Behavioral Study of Extra-Ocular Photoreception in Octopods"

Sheryl Coombs, Ph.D., 1980, "A Comparative Study of Hearing Capabilities Among Teleost Fishes"

Robert Moeng, Ph.D., 1980, "Auditory Responses of Saccular Neurons of the Catfish, *Ictalurus punctatus*"

Georgetown University

William M. Saidel, Postdoctoral, 1980-1982, "Physiology and Innervation of the Ear of Fishes" Catherine A. McCormick, Postdoctoral, 1979-1983, "Behavioral Studies of Hearing in a Mormyrid Fish"

Gloria Meredith, Ph.D., 1983, "The Peripheral Configuration and Primary Afferent Projections of the Inner Ear and Lateral Line in the Teleost Fish, *Astronotus ocellatus*"

Bernd Sokolowski, Ph.D., 1985, "A Microscopic Study of the Development of the Saccule in the Toadfish, *Opsanus tau*"

Carsten Mathiesen, Postdoctoral, 1985-1986, "Structure of the Ear in the Gar"

Joelle C. Presson, Postdoctoral, 1985-1990, "Innervation and Development of the Teleost Ear"

University of Maryland

Completed

Hong Y. Yan, Postdoctoral, 1989-1993, "Psychophysical determination of hearing capabilities"

Peggy Edds, Ph.D. 1988-1994, "Central projections of the inner ear"

Janet Chang, MS 1990-1992, "Ultrastructure of sensory hair cells"

Antoni Lombarte, Postdoctoral, 1990-1992, "Regeneration of sensory hair cells"

Pamela Lanford, Ph.D., 1991-1997, "Development of sensory hair cells in fishes"

David Mann, Postdoctoral, 1995-1997, "Temporal parameters in acoustic communication"

Jiakun Song, Postdoctoral, 1992-1997, "Efferent components of the octavolateralis system"

Zhongmin Lu, Postdoctoral, 1994-1999, "Physiology of eighth nerve units of the ear"

Heather Wilkins, Ph.D., 1995-2000, "Development of sensory hair cells"

Dennis Higgs, Postdoctoral, 1999-2003, "Ultrasound detection in fish"

Dennis Plachta, Postdoctoral, 2000-2002, "Physiology of inner ear responses"

Kirstan Poling, Postdoctoral, 2001-2003, "Hearing by zebrafish"

John Ramcharitar, Ph.D. program, 1998-2003, "Structure-function relationships in the auditory system of Sciaenid fish"

Allison Coffin, Ph.D. program, 2000-2005, "Evolution of sensory hair cells"

Michael Smith, Postdoctoral, 2002-2005, "Impact of anthropogenic sound on the auditory system"

Eric Boger, Ph.D. program, 2003-2006 "Molecular biology of myosin XV" (co-mentored with NIH colleague Dr. Thomas Friedman)

Jennifer Hill, Postdoctoral 2006-2007, "Development of sensory hair cells in fish"

Diane Miller, M.S. program, 2004-2007

Lidia Wysocki, Postdoctoral, 2004-2007, "Effects of anthropogenic sound on fishes"

David Zeddies, Postdoctoral, 2003-2008, "Biomechanical aspects of ultrasound detection"

Michaela Meyer, Ph.D. program 1999-2008, "Auditory mechanisms in a primitive fish"

Michele Halvorsen, Postdoctoral, 2003-2008, "Effects of anthropogenic sound on fish"

Xiaohong Deng, Ph.D. program (NACS), 2000-2009, "Inner ear function in deep sea fishes"

Raymond Merritt, Ph.D. program (NACS) 2004-2009, "Genetics of the inner ear" (co-mentored with Dr. Bachara Kachar, NIH)

Jin Liang, Ph.D. program (NACS), 2004-2010, "Regulation of development and regeneration of sensory hair cells" (co-mentored with Dr. Shawn Burgess, NIH)

Sandra Blumenrath, Ph. D. program (BIOL), 2005-2011 "sound detection in the presence of noise" (comentored with Robert Dooling)

Lale Evsen, Ph.D. program (NACS), 2004-2012, "Development of the ear" (co-mentored with Dr. Doris Wu, NIH)

Brandon Casper, Postdoctoral, 2008-2012, "Effects of anthropogenic sound on fish"

Publications (Research)

- 1. Jacobs, D.W., and Popper, A.N. (1968). Stimulus effectiveness in avoidance behavior in fishes. Psychon. Sci. 12:109-110.
- 2. Popper, A.N. (1970). Auditory capacities of the Mexican blind cave fish *Astyanax jordani* and its eyed ancestor *Astyanax mexicanus*. Anim. Behav. 18:552-562.
- 3. Popper, A.N. (1971). The morphology of the Weberian ossicles in two species of *Astyanax* (Ostariophysi: Characidae). J. Morphol. 133:179-188.
- 4. Popper, A.N. (1971). The effects of size on the auditory capacities of the goldfish. J. Aud. Res. 11:239-247.

- 5. Popper, A.N. (1972). Auditory thresholds in the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*) as a function of signal duration. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 52:596-602.
- 6. Popper, A.N. (1972). Pure-tone auditory thresholds for the carp *Cyprinus carpio*. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 52:1714-1717.
- 7. Popper, A.N., Chan, A.T.H., and Clarke, N.L. (1973). An evaluation of methods for behavioral investigations of teleost audition. Behav. Res. Methods Instr. 5:470-472.
- 8. Popper, A.N., Salmon, M., and Parvulescu, A. (1973). Sound localization by two species of Hawaiian squirrelfish, *Myripristis berndti* and *M. argyromus*. Anim. Behav. 21:86-97.
- 9. Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1973). Sound detection and processing by fish: A critical review. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 53:1515-1529.
- 10. Demski, L., Gerald, G.W., and Popper, A.N. (1973). Central and peripheral mechanisms in teleost sound production. Am. Zool. 13:1141-1167.
- 11. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1973). Vibration isolation for small aquaria. Behav. Res. Methods Instr. 5:502-503.
- 12. Popper, A.N. (1974). The response of the swimbladder of the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*) to acoustic stimuli. J. Exp. Biol. 60:295-304.
- 13. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1974). Acoustic stimulation of the ear of the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*). J. Exp. Biol. 61:243-260.
- 14. Tenold, J.L., Crowell, D.H., Jones, R.H., Daniel, T.H., McPherson, D.F., and Popper, A.N. (1974). Cepstral and stationary analysis of full-term and premature infants' cries. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 56:975-980.
- 15. Fay, R.R., Kendall, J.I., Popper, A.N., and Tester, A.L. (1974). Vibration detection by the macula neglecta of sharks. Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 47:1235-1240.
- 16. Clarke, N.L., Popper, A.N., and Mann, J.A., Jr. (1975). Laser light scattering investigations of the teleost swimbladder response to acoustic stimuli. Biophys. J. 15:307-318.
- 17. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1975). Modes of stimulation of the teleost ear. J. Exp. Biol. 62:379-387.
- 18. Renaud, D.L., and Popper, A.N. (1975). Sound localization by the bottlenose porpoise, *Tursiops truncatus*. J. Exp. Biol. 63:569-585.
- 19. Popper, A.N., and Clarke, N.L. (1976). The auditory system of the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*): Effects of intense acoustic stimulation. Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 53A:11-18.
- 20. Popper, A.N. (1976). A general purpose animal holder for dissections. Behav. Res. Methods Instr. 8:339-340.
- 21. Popper, A.N. (1976). Ultrastructure of the auditory regions in the inner ear of the lake whitefish. Science 192:1020-1023.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 10 of 45

- 22. Popper, A.N. (1977). A scanning electron microscopic study of the sacculus and lagena in the ears of fifteen species of teleost fishes. J. Morphol. 153:397-418.
- 23. Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1977). Structure and function of the elasmobranch auditory system. Am. Zool. 17:443-452.
- 24. Popper, A.N. (1978). A comparative study of the otolithic organs in fishes. Scan. Electron Microsc. 1984:405-416.
- 25. Popper, A.N. (1978). Scanning electron microscopic study of the otolithic organs in the bichir (*Polypterus bichir*) and shovel-nose sturgeon (*Scaphirhynchus platorynchus*). J. Comp. Neurol. 18:117-128.
- 26. Coombs, S., and Popper, A.N. (1979). Hearing differences among Hawaiian squirrelfishes (Family Holocentridae) related to differences in the peripheral auditory system. J. Comp. Physiol. 132:203-207.
- 27. Popper, A.N. (1979). Ultrastructure of the sacculus and lagena in a moray eel (*Gymnothorax* sp.). J. Morphol. 161:241-256.
- 28. Popper, A.N., and Platt, C. (1979). The herring ear has a unique receptor pattern. Nature 280:832-833.
- 29. Popper, A.N., and Clarke, N.L. (1979). Non-simultaneous auditory masking in the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. J. Exp. Biol. 83:145-158.
- 30. Popper, A.N. (1980). Scanning electron microscopic studies of the sacculus and lagena in several deep-sea fishes. Am. J. Anat. 157:115-136.
- 31. Popper, A.N., and Coombs, S. (1980). Auditory mechanisms in teleost fishes. Am. Scientist 69:429-440.
- 32. Popper, A.N. (1980). Behavioral measures of odontocete hearing. In: *Animal Sonar Systems*. (ed. R.G. Busnel). Plenum Press, New York, pp. 469-479.
- 33. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1980). Structure and function in teleost auditory systems. In: *Comparative Studies of Hearing in Vertebrates*. (eds. A.N. Popper and R.R. Fay). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 3-42.
- 34. Popper, A.N. (1980). Sound emission and detection by delphinids. In: *Cetacean Behavior: Mechanisms and Processes*. (ed. L.M. Herman). J. Wiley and Sons, New York, pp. 1-51.
- 35. Popper, A.N., and Coombs, S. (1980). Acoustic detection by fishes. In: *Environmental Physiology of Fishes*. (ed. M.A. Ali). Plenum Press, New York, pp. 403-430.
- 36. Popper, A.N. (1981). Comparative scanning electron microscopic investigations of the sensory epithelia in the teleost sacculus and lagena. J. Comp. Neurol. 200:357-374.
- 37. Popper, A.N., and Tavolga, W.N. (1981). Structure and function of the ear of the marine catfish, *Arius felis.* J. Comp. Physiol. 144:27-34.
- 38. Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1981). The fine structure of the sensory epithelia of the sacculus and lagena of a teleost fish. Hear. Res. 5:245-263.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 11 of 45

- 39. Platt, C., and Popper, A.N. (1981). Otolith organ receptor morphology in herring-like fishes. In: *Vestibular System: Function and Morphology*. (ed., T. Gualterotti). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 64-74.
- 40. Platt, C., and Popper, A.N. (1981). Structure and function in the ear. In: *Hearing and Sound Communication in Fishes*. (eds. W.N. Tavolga, A.N. Popper and R.R. Fay). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 3-38.
- 41. Coombs, S., and Popper, A.N. (1982). Comparative frequency selectivity in fishes: Simultaneously and forward-masked psychophysical tuning curves. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 71:132-141.
- 42. Coombs, S., and Popper, A.N. (1982). Structure and function of the auditory system in the clown knife fish, *Notopterus chitala*. J. Exp. Biol. 97:225-239.
- 43. Popper, A.N., and Coombs, S. (1982). The morphology and evolution of the ear in Actinopterygian fishes. Am. Zool. 22:311-328.
- 44. Popper, A.N., Platt, C., and Saidel, W.M. (1982). Acoustic functions in the fish ear. Trends Neurosci. 5:276-280.
- 45. Popper, A.N., and Northcutt, R.G. (1983). Structure and innervation of the inner ear of the bowfin, *Amia calva*. J. Comp. Neurol. 213:279-286.
- 46. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1983). Hearing in fishes: Comparative anatomy of the ear and the neural coding of sensory information. In: *Hearing and Other Senses: Presentations in Honor of E.G. Wever*, (eds. R.R. Fay and G. Gourevitch), The Amorpha Press: Groton, CT. pp. 123-148.
- 47. Saidel, W.M., and Popper, W.M. (1983). The saccule may be the transducer for directional hearing of nonostariophysine teleosts. Exp. Brain Res. 50:149-152.
- 48. Popper, A.N., and Platt, C. (1983). Sensory surface of the saccule and lagena in the ears of ostariophysan fishes. J. Morphol. 176:121-129.
- 49. Saidel, W.M., and Popper, A.N. (1983). Spatial organization in the saccule and lagena of a teleost: Hair cell pattern and innervation. J. Morphol. 177:301-317.
- 50. Popper, A.N. (1983). Organization of the inner ear and processing of acoustic information. In: *Fish Neurobiology and Behavior*. (eds. R.G. Northcutt and R.E. Davis). University of Michigan, Press, Ann Arbor, MI, pp. 125-178.
- 51. Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1984). Sound detection and processing by teleost fish: A selective review. In: *Comparative Physiology of Sensory Systems*, (eds. L. Bolis, R.D. Keynes, and S.H.P. Maddrell). Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, UK, pp. 67-101.
- 52. Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1984). Growth of a fish ear: 1. Quantitative analysis of sensory hair cell and ganglion cell proliferation. Hear. Res. 15:133-142.
- 53. Platt, C., and Popper, A.N. (1984). Variation in lengths of ciliary bundles on hair cells along the macula of the sacculus in two species of teleost fishes. Scan. Electron Microsc. 1984:1915-1924.
- 54. Moeng, R., and Popper, A.N. (1984). Auditory responses of saccular neurons of the catfish, *Ictalurus punctatus*. J. Comp. Physiol. 155:615-624.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 12 of 45

- 55. McCormick, C.A., and Popper, A.N. (1984). Auditory sensitivity and psychophysical tuning curves in the elephant nose fish, *Gnathonemus petersii*. J. Comp. Physiol. 155:753-761.
- 56. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1985). The octavolateralis system. In: *Functional Vertebrate Morphology*, (eds. M. Hildebrand, D. M. Bramble, K. F. Liem and D. B. Wake). Harvard Press: Cambridge, MA, pp. 291-316.
- 57. Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1987). Sensory and nonsensory ciliated cells in the ear of the sea lamprey, *Petromyzon marinus*. Brain Behav. Evol. 30:43-61.
- 58. Saidel, W.M., and Popper, A.N. (1987). Sound reception in two anabantid fishes. Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 88A:37-44.
- 59. Mathiesen, C., and Popper, A.N. (1987). The ultrastructure and innervation of the ear of the gar, *Lepisosteus osseus*. J. Morphol. 194:129-142.
- 60. Sokolowski, B., and Popper, A.N. (1987). The gross and ultrastructural development of the saccule of the toadfish, *Opsanus tau*. J. Morphol. 194:323-348.
- 61. Popper, A.N., Rogers, P.H., Saidel, W.M., and Cox, M. (1988). The role of the fish ear in sound processing. In: *Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals*, (eds. J. Atema, R.R. Fay, A.N. Popper, and W.N. Tavolga). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 687-710.
- 62. Rogers, P.H., Popper, A.N., Cox, M., and Saidel, W.M. (1988). Processing of acoustic signals in the auditory system of bony fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 83:338-349.
- 63. Sokolowski, B., and Popper, A.N. (1988). Transmission electron microscopic study of the saccule in the embryonic, larval, and adult toadfish, *Opsanus tau*. J. Morphol. 198:49-69.
- 64. Platt, C., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1989). The ear as part of the octavolateralis system. In: *The Mechanosensory Lateral Line: Neurobiology and Evolution*, (eds. S. Coombs, P. Görner, and H. Münz). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 663-651.
- 65. Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1990). Growth of a fish ear II. Locations of newly proliferated sensory hair cells in the saccular epithelium of *Astronotus ocellatus*. Hear. Res. 45:33-40.
- 66. Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1990). A ganglionic source of new eighth nerve neurons in a post-embryonic fish. Hear. Res. 46:23-38.
- 67. Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1990). Possible precursors to new hair cells, support cells, and Schwann cells in the ear of a post-embryonic fish. Hear. Res. 46:9-21.
- 68. Popper, A.N., and Saidel, W.M. (1990). Variations in receptor cell innervation in the saccule of a teleost fish ear. Hear. Res. 46:211-227.
- 69. Saidel, W.M., Popper, A.N., and Chang, J. (1990). Spatial and morphological differentiation of trigger zones in afferent fibers to the teleost utricle. J. Comp. Neurol. 302:629-642.
- 70. Yan, H.Y., and Popper, A.N. (1991). An automated positive reward based method for measuring acoustic sensitivity in fish. Behav. Res. Methods Instr. Comput. 23:351-356.
- 71. Yan, H.Y., Saidel, W.M, Chang, J., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1991). Sensory hair cells of the fish ear: evidence of multiple types based on ototoxicity sensitivity. Proc. R. Soc. Lond. B. Biol. Sci. 245:133-138.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 13 of 45

- 72. Popper, A.N., Platt, C., and Edds, P. (1992). Evolution of the Vertebrate inner ear: An overview of ideas. In: *Comparative Evolutionary Biology of Hearing*, (eds. D.B. Webster, R.R. Fay, and A.N. Popper). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 49-57.
- 73. Schellart, N.A.M., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Functional aspects of the evolution of the auditory system of Actinopterygian fish. In: *The Evolutionary Biology of Hearing*, (eds. D.B. Webster, R.R. Fay, and A.N. Popper). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 295-322.
- 74. Yan, H.Y., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Auditory sensitivity of the cichlid fish *Astronotus ocellatus* (Cuvier). J. Comp. Physiol. 171A:105-109.
- 75. Presson, J.C., Edds, P.E., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Central-peripheral and rostral-caudal organization of the innervation of the saccule in a cichlid fish. Brain Behav. Evol. 39:196-207.
- 76. Chang, J. S. Y, Popper, A.N., and Saidel, W.M. (1992). Heterogeneity of sensory hair cells in a fish ear. J. Comp. Neurol. 324:621-640.
- 77. Popper, A.N., Saidel, W.M., and Chang, J.S.Y. (1993) Two types of sensory hair cell in the saccule of a teleost fish. Hear. Res. 66:211-216.
- 78. Popper, A.N., and Fay, R. R. (1993) Sound detection and processing by fish: Critical review and major research questions. Brain Behav. Evol. 41:14-38. [Selected as "citation classic." See Fay and Popper 2012]
- 79. Lombarte, A. Yan, H.Y., Popper, A.N., Chang, J.C., and Platt, C. (1993). Damage and regeneration of hair cell ciliary bundles in a fish ear following treatment with gentamicin. Hear. Res. 66:166-174.
- 80. Popper, A.N., and Platt, C. (1993). Inner ear and lateral line of bony fishes. In: *The Physiology of Fishes* (ed. D. H. Evans). CRC Press, Boca Raton, FL, pp. 99-136.
- 81. Presson, J. C., Jones, M., and Popper, A. N. (1993). Modes of neuronal arbor enlargement in the ear of a postembryonic fish, *Astronotus ocellatus*. Cell Tissue Res. 274:97-103.
- 82. Yan, H. Y., and Popper, A. N. (1993). Acoustic intensity discrimination by the cichlid fish *Astronotus ocellatus*. J. Comp. Physiol. 173:347-351.
- 83. Echteler, S. M, Fay, R.R., and Popper, A. N. (1994). Structure of the mammalian cochlea. In: *Comparative Hearing: Mammals*, (eds. R.R. Fay, and A.N. Popper). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 134-171.
- 84. Lombarte, A., and Popper, A.N. (1994). Quantitative analyses of postembryonic hair cell addition in the otolithic endorgans of the inner ear of the European hake, *Merluccius merluccius* (Gadiformes, Teleostei). J. Comp. Neurol. 345:419-428.
- 85. Popper, A. N., and Saidel, W. S. (1994). Sensory cells of the fish ear-A hairy enigma. Sensoryne System 8:29-41. (In Russian: English translation in Sensory Systems, 8:142-149).
- 86. Green, D.M., DeFerrari, H.A., McFadden, D., Pearse, J.S., Popper, A.N., Richardson, W.J., Ridgway, S.H., and Tyack, P.L. (1994). Low-Frequency Sound and Marine Mammals: Current Knowledge and Research Needs. National Research Council, National Academy Press, Washington, DC.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 14 of 45

- 87. Popper, A.N., and Edds-Walton, P.L. (1995). Structural diversity in the inner ea of teleost fishes: Implications for connections to the Mauthner cell. Brain Behav. Evol. 46:131-140.
- 88. Eaton, R.C., and Popper, A.N. (1995). The octavolateralis system and Mauthner cell: Interactions and questions. Brain Behav. Evol. 46:124-130.
- 89. Popper, A.N. (1995). Fish sensory responses: Prospects for developing behavioral guidance technologies. Office of Technology Assessment, *Fish Passage Technologies: Protection of Hydropower Facilities*, OTA-ENV-641 (Washington DC), NTIS PB96107677.
- 90. Saidel, W.M., Lanford, P.J., Yan, H.Y., and Popper, A.N. (1995). Hair cell heterogeneity in the goldfish saccule. Brain Behav. Evol. 46:362-370.
- 91. Edds-Walton, P.L., and Popper, A.N. (1995). Hair cell orientation on the saccule of juvenile and adult toadfish (*Opsanus tau*). Acta Zool. 76: 257-265.
- 92. Popper, A.N. (1995). The teleost octavolateralis system: Structure and function. Mar Freshwater Behav. Physiol. 27:95-110.
- 93. Song, J., Yan, H.Y., and Popper, A.N. (1995). Damage and recovery of hair cells in fish canal (but not superficial) neuromasts after gentamicin exposure. Hear. Res. 91:63-71.
- 94. Hastings, M.C., Popper, A.N., Finneran, J.J., and Lanford, P.J. (1996). Effect of low frequency underwater sound on hair cells of the inner ear and lateral line of the teleost fish *Astronotus ocellatus*. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 99:1759-1766.
- 95. Lanford, P.J., and Popper, A.N. (1996). A unique afferent structure in the crista ampullaris of the goldfish. J. Comp. Neurol. 366:572-579.
- 96. Lu, Z., Popper, A.N. and Fay, R.R. (1996). Behavioral detection of acoustic particle motion by a teleost fish, *Astronotus ocellatus*: sensitivity and directionality. J. Comp. Physiol. A 179:227-233.
- 97. Popper, A.N., and Dooling, R.J. (1996). Comparative and evolutionary biology of hearing at the University of Maryland, College Park, MD. Bioacoustics 7:45-51.
- 98. Lanford, P.J., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1996). Cell proliferation and hair cell addition in the ear of the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. Hear. Res. 100:1-9.
- 99. Presson, J.C., Lanford, P.J., and Popper, A.N. (1996). Hair cell precursors are ultrastructurally indistinguishable from mature support cells in the ear of a postembryonic fish. Hear. Res. 100: 10-20.
- 100. Popper, A.N., Hawkins, H.L., and Dolphin, W. (1997). Editorial: Workshop on cetacean acoustics. Bioacoustics 8:1-2.
- 101. Popper, A.N., Hawkins, H.L., and Gisiner, R.C. (1997). Questions in cetacean bioacoustics: Some suggestions for future research. Bioacoustics 8:163-181.
- 102. Popper, A.N. (1997). Animal bioacoustics An overview. In *Handbook of Acoustics* (ed. M. Crocker). John Wiley and Sons, New York, pp. 1783-1788.
- 103. Popper, A.N., and Edds-Walton, P.L. (1997). Bioacoustics of marine vertebrates. In *Handbook of Acoustics* (ed. M. Crocker). John Wiley and Sons, New York, pp. 1831-1836.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 15 of 45

- 104. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1997). Evolution of vertebrate sensory systems. Brain Behav. Evol. 50:187-188.
- 105. Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1997). Evolution of the ear and hearing: Issues and questions. Brain Behav. Evol. 50:213-221.
- 106. Carlson, T.J., and Popper, A.N. (editors) (1997). Using sound to modify fish behavior at power-production and water-control facilities. A workshop held December 12-13, 1995, Portland, OR. Published by Bonneville Power Administration, Portland, OR, Project Number 92-071-01, 362 pp.
- 107. Mann, D.A., Lu, Z., and Popper, A.N. (1997). A clupeid fish can detect ultrasound. Nature 389:341.
- 108. Lu, Z., Song, J., and Popper, A.N. (1998). Encoding of acoustic directional information by saccular afferents of the sleeper goby, *Dormitator latifrons*. J. Comp. Physiol. A 182:805-815.
- 109. Popper, A.N., and Carlson, T.J. (1998). Application of the use of sound to control fish behavior. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 127:673-707.
- 110. Mann, D.A., Lu, Z., Hastings, M.C., and Popper, A.N. (1998). Detection of ultrasonic tones and simulated dolphin echolocation clicks by a teleost fish, the American shad (*Alosa sapidissima*). J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 104:562-568.
- 111. Lu, Z., and Popper, A.N. (1998). Morphological polarizations of sensory hair cells in the three otolith organs of a teleost fish: Fluorescent labeling of ciliary bundles. Hear. Res. 126:47-57.
- 112. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1999). Hearing in fishes and amphibians: An introduction. In: *Comparative Hearing: Fish and Amphibians* (eds. R.R. Fay and A.N. Popper). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 1-14.
- 113. Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1999). The auditory periphery in fishes. In: *Comparative Hearing: Fish and Amphibians* (eds. R.R. Fay and A.N. Popper). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 43-100.
- 114. Zelick, R., Mann, D., and Popper, A.N. (1999). Acoustic communication in fishes and frogs. In: *Comparative Hearing: Fish and Amphibians* (eds. R.R. Fay and A.N. Popper). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 363-411.
- 115. Wilkins, H.R., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1999). Proliferation of vertebrate inner ear supporting cells. J. Neurobiol. 39:527-535.
- 116. Popper, A.N. (1999). Feasibility study on the use of sound to deter fish from the vicinity of the Salem Generating Station circulating water intake structure. PSE&G Renewal Application, Appendix G, Exhibit G-7. Public Service Electric & Gas Company. Salem Permit Program. 44 South Clinton Ave., Station Plaza, First Floor-MC/104, Trenton, NJ 08609.
- 117. Edds-Walton, P., and Popper, A.N. (2000). Dendritic arbors on the saccule and lagena in the ear of the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. Hear. Res. 141:229-242.
- 118. Lanford, P.J., Platt, C., and Popper, A.N. (2000). Structure and function in the saccule of the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*): A model of diversity in the non-amniote ear. Hear. Res. 143:1-13.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 16 of 45

- 119. Popper, A.N., DeFerrari, H.A., Dolphin, W.F., Edds-Walton, P.L., Greve, G. M., McFadden, D., Rhines, P.B., Ridgway, S.H., Seyfarth, R.M., Smith, S.L., and Tyack, P.L. (2000). *Marine Mammals and Low Frequency Sound: Progress Since 1994*. National Academy Press, Washington, DC.
- 120. Popper, A.N., and Lu, Z. (2000). Structure-function relationships in fish otolith organs. Fish. Res. 46:15-25.
- 121. Dooling, R.J., and Popper, A.N. (2000). Hearing by birds and reptiles: An overview. In: *Comparative Hearing: Reptiles and Birds* (eds. R.J. Dooling, R.R. Fay, and A.N. Popper)Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 1-12.
- 122. Popper, A.N. (2000). Hair cell heterogeneity and ultrasonic hearing: Recent advances in understanding fish hearing. Phil. Trans. R. Soc. Lond. B Biol. Sci. 355:1277-1280.
- 123. Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (2000). Evolution of hearing in vertebrates: The inner ears and processing. Hear. Res. 149:1-10.
- 124. Popper, A.N., Higgs, D., Mann, D., and Tavolga, W.N. (2001). Ultrasound detection by fish: Hearing capabilities and structural basis. In: *Physiology and Psychophysical Bases of Auditory Function: Proceedings of the 12th International Symposium on Hearing* (eds. D.J. Breebaart, A.J.M. Houtsma, A. Kohlrausch, V.F. Prijs, and R. Schoonhoven). Shaker Publishing S.V., Maastricht, The Netherlands, pp. 430-436.
- 125. Popper, A.N., and Webster, D.B. (2001). Ear (vertebrate). In: McGraw Hill Encyclopedia of Science & Technology, 9th Edition. McGraw-Hill, New York.
- 126. Ladich, F., and Popper, A.N. (2001) Comparison of the inner ear ultrastructure between teleost fishes using different channels for communication. Hear. Res. 154:62-72.
- 127. Wilkins, H., Presson, J.C., Popper, A.N., Ryals, B., and Dooling, R. (2001) Hair cell death in a hearing-deficient canary. J. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 2:79-86.
- 128. Popper, A.N., Salmon, M., and Horch, K.W. (2001). Acoustic detection and communication by decapod crustaceans. J. Comp. Physiol. A 187:83-89. doi.org/10.1007/s003590100184
- 129. Mann, D.A., Higgs, D.M., Tavolga, W.N., Souza, M.J., and Popper, A.N. (2001). Ultrasound detection by clupeiform fishes. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 109:3048-3054.
- 130. Lu, Z., and Popper, A.N. (2001). Neural response directionality correlates of hair cell orientation in a teleost fish. J. Comp. Physiol. A 187:453-465
- 131. Popper, A.N., and Higgs, D.M. (2001). Fish hearing, lateral lines. In: Encyclopedia of Ocean Sciences. Academic Press, London, pp. 922-928.
- 132. Ramcharitar, J., Higgs, D.M., and Popper, A.N. (2001). Sciaenid inner ears: A study in diversity. Brain Behav. Evol. 58:152-162.
- 133. Higgs, D.M., Souza, M.J., Wilkins, H.R., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Age- and size-related changes in the inner ear and hearing ability of the adult zebrafish (*Danio rerio*). J. Assn. Res. Otolaryngol. 3:174-184. DOI: 10.1007/s10162002003
- 134. Popper, A.N. (2002). An overview of the applied use of sound in fisheries and fish biology. Bioacoustics 12:303-306.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 17 of 45

- 135. Popper, A.N. (2002). Structure-function relationships in the ears of fishes. Bioacoustics 12:115-118.
- 136. Popper, A.N., Balletto, J., Strait, K., Winchell, F., Wells, A.W., and Vaskis, M. (2002). Preliminary evidence for the use of sound to decrease losses of aquatic organisms at a power plant cooling water intake. Bioacoustics 12:306-308.
- 137. Plachta, D.T.T., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Neuronal and behavioral responses of American shad, *Alosa sapidissima* to ultrasound stimuli. Bioacoustics 12:191-193.
- 138. Meyer, M., Plachta, D.T.T., Popper, A.N., and Bleckmann, H. (2002). In vitro whole brain preparation of fish for the electrophysiological analysis of sensory pathways. Bioacoustics 12:328-330.
- 139. Coffin, A.B., Higgs, D.M., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Distribution of unconventional myosins in the zebrafish ear. Bioacoustics 12:140-143.
- 140. Mann, D.A., Higgs, D.M., Tavolga, W.N., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Ultrasound detection by clupeiforme fishes. Bioacoustics 12:188-191.
- 141. Higgs, D.M., Brittan-Powell, E.F., Soares, D., Souza, M.J., Carr, C.E., Dooling, R.J., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Amphibious auditory responses of the American alligator (*Alligator mississipiensis*). J. Comp. Physiol. A 188:217-223. doi 10.1007/s00359-002-0296-8.
- 142. McCauley, R.D., Fewtrell, J., and Popper, A.N. (2003). High intensity anthropogenic sound damages fish ears. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 113:638-642. doi:10.1121/1.1527962.
- 143. Higgs, D.M., Rollo, A.K., Souza, M.J., and Popper, A.N. (2003). Development of form and function in peripheral auditory structures of the zebrafish (*Danio rerio*). J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 113:1145-1154.
- 144. Plachta, D.T.T., and Popper, A.N. (2003). Evasive responses of American shad (*Alosa sapidissima*) to ultrasonic stimuli. Acoust. Res. Lett. Online, 4:25-30. doi:10.1121/1.1558376.
- 145. Popper, A.N., Fay, R.R., Platt, C., and Sand, O. (2003). Sound detection mechanisms and capabilities of teleost fishes. In: *Sensory Processing in Aquatic Environments* (eds. S.P. Collin and N.J. Marshall). Springer-Verlag, New York, pp. 3-38.
- 146. Popper, A.N. (2003). Effects of anthropogenic sound on fishes. Fisheries, 28:24-31.
- 147. Frisk, G., Bradley, D. Caldwell, J. D'Spain, G., Gordon, J., Hastings, M., Ketten, D., Miller, J., Nelson, D. L., Popper, A. N., and Wartzok, D. (2003). *Ocean Noise and Marine Mammals*. National Academy Press, Washington, DC.
- 148. Higgs, D.M., Plachta, D.T.T., Rollo, A.K., Singheiser, M., Hastings, M.C., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Development of ultrasound detection in American shad (*Alosa sapidissima*). J. Exp. Biol. 207:155-163.
- 149. Smith, M.E., Kane, A.S., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Noise-induced stress response and hearing loss in goldfish (*Carassius auratus*). J. Exp. Biol. 207:427-435.
- 150. Platt, C., Jørgensen, J.M., and Popper, A.N. (2004). The inner ear of the lungfish *Protopterus*. J. Comp. Neurol., 471:277-278.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 18 of 45

- 151. Coffin, A., Kelley, M., Manley, G.A., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Evolution of sensory hair cells. In: *Evolution of the Vertebrate Auditory System* (eds. G.A. Manley, A.N. Popper, and R.R. Fay). Springer-Verlag, New York, 55-94.
- 152. Ladich, F., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Parallel evolution in fish hearing organs. In: *Evolution of the Vertebrate Auditory System* (eds. G.A. Manley, A.N. Popper, and R.R. Fay). Springer-Verlag, New York, 95-127.
- 153. Lombarte, A., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Quantitative changes in the otolithic organs of the inner ear during the settlement period in European hake (*Merluccius merluccius*). Marine Ecol. Prog. Ser., 267:233-240.
- 154. Popper, A.N., Plachta, D.T.T., Mann, D.A., and Higgs, D. (2004). The response of clupeid fishes to ultrasound: a review. ICES J. Mar. Sci., 61:1057-1061.
- 155. Popper, A.N., Fewtrell, J., Smith, M.E., and McCauley, R.D. (2004). Anthropogenic sound: Effects on the behavior and physiology of fishes. Marine Technology Soc. J. 37(4):35-40.
- 156. Wartzog, D., Popper, A.N., Gordon, J., and Merrill, J. (2004). Factors affecting the responses of marine mammals to acoustic disturbance. Marine Technology Soc. J. 37(4):6-15.
- 157. Ramcharitar, J.U., Deng, X., Ketten, D., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Form and function in the unique inner ear of a teleost fish: The silver perch (*Bairdiella chrysoura*). J. Comp. Neurol., 475:531-539.
- 158. Popper, A. N. and Dooling, R. J. (2004). Animal Bioacoustics. In Bass, H. E., and Cavanaugh, W. J. (eds.). ASA at 75. Acoustical Society of America: Melville, NY., pp. 52-62.
- 159. Plachta, D.T.T., Song, J., Halvorsen, M.B., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Neuronal encoding of ultrasonic sound by a fish. J. Neurophysiol., 91:2590-2597. Doi:10.1152/jn.01200.2003.
- 160. Ramcharitar, J. U., and Popper, A. N. (2004). Masked auditory thresholds in sciaenid fishes: a comparative study. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., 116:1687-1691.
- 161. Smith, M.E., Kane, A.S., and Popper, A.N. (2004). Acoustical stress and hearing sensitivity in fishes: Does the linear threshold shift hypothesis hold water? J. Exp. Biol. 207:3591-3602.
- 162. Mann, D. A, Popper, A. N. and Wilson, B. (2005). Pacific herring hearing does not include ultrasound. Biology Letters, 1:158-161 doi:10.1098/rsbl.2004.0241
- 163. Popper, A. N., Ramcharitar, J., and Campana, S. E. (2005). Why otoliths? Insights from inner ear physiology and fisheries biology. Marine and Freshwater Research, 56:497-504.
- 164. Fay, R. R. and Popper, A. N. (2005). Introduction to sound source localization. In: *Sound Source Localization* (Eds. A. N. Popper and R. R. Fay), Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 1-5.
- 165. Popper, A. N., Smith, M. E., Cott, P. A., Hanna, B. W., MacGillivray, A, O, Austin, M. E, Mann, D. A. (2005). Effects of exposure to seismic airgun use on hearing of three fish species. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., 117:3958-3971. http://www.oneocean.ca/pdf/seismic/popper.pdf
- 166. Buran, B. N., Deng, X., and Popper, A. N. (2005). Structural variation in the inner ears of four deep-sea elopomorph fishes. J. Morphol. 265:215-225.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 19 of 45

- 167. Ramcharitar, J., Higgs, D. and Popper, A. N. (2006). Audition in Sciaenid fishes with different swim bladder-inner ear configurations. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 119:439-443.
- 168. Song, J., Matieu, A., Soper, R. F., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Structure of the inner ear of bluefin tuna (*Thunnus thynnus*). J. Fish. Biol., 68:1767-1781.
- 169. Ramcharitar, J., Gannon, D. P., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Bioacoustics of the family Sciaenidae (croakers and drumfishes). Tran. Am. Fish. Soc., 135: 1409-1431.
- 170. Kwak, S., Vemarajou, S., Moorman, S. J, Zeddies, D., Popper, A. N., and Riley, B. B. (2006). Zebrafish *pax5* regulates development of the utricular macula and vestibular function. Develop. Dynamics 235:3026-3038.
- 171. Popper, A.N. (2006). What do we know about pile driving and fish? in *Proceedings of the 2005 International Conference on Ecology and Transportation*, edited by C.L Irwin, P. Garrett, and K.P. McDermott (Center for Transportation and the Environment, North Carolina State University, Raleigh, NC), pp. 26-28.
- 172. Smith, M. E., Coffin, A. B., Miller, D. L., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Anatomical and functional recovery of the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*) ear following noise exposure. J. Exp. Biol., 209:4193-4202.
- 173. Coffin, A. B., Dabdoud, A., Kelley, M. W., and Popper, A. N. (2007). Myosin VI and VIIa distribution among inner ear epithelia in diverse fishes. Hear. Res., 224:15-26.
- 174. Carlson, T. J., Hastings, M. C. and Popper, A. N. (2007). Update on Recommendations for Revised Interim Sound Exposure Criteria for Fish During Pile Driving Activities. http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/bio/files/ct-arlington_memo_12-21-07.pdf
- 175. Mann, D. A., Cott, P. A., Hanna, B. W., and Popper, A. N. (2007). Hearing in eight species of northern Canadian freshwater fishes: implications for seismic surveys. J. Fish. Biol., 70:109-120.
- 176. Davidson, J.W., Frankel, A.S, Ellison, W., Summerfelt, S.T., Popper, A.N., Mazik, P., and Bebak, J. (2007). Minimizing noise in fiberglass aquaculture tanks: Noise reduction potential of various retrofits. Aquacultural Engineering, 37, 125-131.
- 177. Popper, A. N., Halvorsen, M. B., Kane, E., Miller, D. D., Smith, M. E., Song, J. Stein, P., and Wysocki, L. E. (2007). The effects of high-intensity, low-frequency active sonar on rainbow trout. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., 122:623-635.
- 178. Wysocki, L. E., Davidson III, J. W., Smith, M. E., Frankel, A. S., Ellison, W. T., Mazik, P. M., Popper, A. N., Bebak, J. (2007). Effects of aquaculture production noise on hearing, growth, and disease resistance of rainbow trout *Oncorhynchus mykiss*. Aquaculture, 272: 687-697.
- 179. Dooling, R. J., and Popper, A. N. (2007). Effects of highway noise on birds. Prepared Under Contract 43A0139Jones and Stokes Associates http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/bio/files/caltrans_birds_10-7-2007b.pdf
- 180. Oxman, D. S. Barnett-Johnson, R., Smith, M. E., Coffin, A. B., Miller, D. D., Josephson, R., Popper, A. N. (2007). The effect of vaterite deposition on otolith morphology, sound reception and inner ear sensory epithelia in hatchery-reared chinook salmon (*Oncorhynchus tshawytscha*). Canad. J. Fish. Aquatic Sci. 64:1469-1478

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 20 of 45

- 181. Popper, A. N. and Schilt, C. R. (2008). Hearing and acoustic behavior (basic and applied). In: Webb, J. F., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). *Fish Bioacoustics*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York, pp. 17-48.
- 182. Popper, A. N. and Løkkeborg, S. (2008). Effects of anthropogenic sound on fish. Bioacoustics 17:214-217.
- 183. Popper, A. N., Comeau, L. A., and Campana, S. (2008). Determination of the effects of seismic exploration on fish (Project SEIFish). Bioacoustics 17:212-214.
- 184. Hawkins, A., Popper, A. N., and Wahlberg, M. (eds.) (2008). International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. Bioacoustics, 17:1-350.
- 185. Hawkins, A., Popper, A. N., and Wahlberg, M. (2008). Introduction: International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. Bioacoustics, 17:1-3.
- 186. Halvorsen, M. B., Carlson, T., and Popper, A. N. (2008). Effects of exposure to pile-driving sounds on fish. Bioacoustics 17:305-307.
- 187. Popper, A. N. and Ketten, D. R. (2008). Underwater hearing. In: Basbaum, A. I., Kaneko, A., Shepherd, G. M., and Westheimer, G. (eds). *The Senses: A Comprehensive Reference*, Vol. 3, *Audition*, P. Dallos and D. Oertel, Academic Press, San Diego, 225-236.
- 188. Popper, A. N. (2008). Effects of mid- and high-frequency sonars on fish. Contract N66604-07M-6056 Naval Undersea Warfare Center Division, Newport, Rhode Island. http://www.navsea.navy.mil/nuwc/keyport/Environmental%20Documentation/Appendix%20B.pdf
- 189. Song, J., Mann, D. A., Cott, P. A., Hanna, B. W., and Popper, A. N. (2008). The inner ears of northern Canadian freshwater fishes following exposure to seismic air gun sounds. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., 124: 1360-1366. http://www.pubmedcentral.nih.gov/articlerender.fcgi?artid=PMC2680595
- 190. Popper, A. N., Scholnick, E., Malone, R. (2008). Mentoring of junior faculty. Faculty Voice 22(1), 6. (http://facultyvoice.umd.edu/All%20past%20issues/2008-2009/FV V22 N1.pdf)
- 191. Halvorsen, H. B., Wysocki, L. E., Stehr, C. M., Baldwin, D. H., Scholz, N. L., and Popper, A. N. (2009). Barging effects on sensory systems of Chinook salmon smolts. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc., 138: 777-789.
- 192. Song, J. and Popper, A. N. (2009). New perspectives in fish evolution and neurobiology. Integrative Zool., 4:1-2.
- 193. Popper, A. N., and Hastings, M. C. (2009). The effects on fish of human-generated (anthropogenic) sound. Integrative Zool., 4:43-52. http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/NR/rdonlyres/0B027B4A-F9FF-4C88-8DE0-39B165E4CD94/61426/BA_HumanSoundonFish.pdf
- 194. Mann, D. A., Wilson, C. D., Song, J., and Popper, A. N. (2009). Hearing sensitivity of the Walleye Pollock, *Theragra chalcogramma*. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc., 138:1000-1008.
- 195. Popper, A. N. and Hastings, M. C. (2009). Effects of anthropogenic sources of sound on fishes. J. Fish Biol. 75:455-498. http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/NR/rdonlyres/0B027B4A-F9FF-4C88-8DE0-39B165E4CD94/61427/BA_AnthroSoundonFish.pdf
- 196. Wysocki, L.E., Montey, K., and Popper, A. N. (2009). The influence of ambient temperature and thermal acclimation on hearing in a eurythermal and a stenothermal otophysan fish. J. Exp. Biol212: 3091-3099.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 21 of 45

- 197. Popper, A. N. (2009). Are we drowning out fish in a sea of noise? Marine Scientist, Number 27, May 2009, pp. 18-20.
- 198. Meyer, M., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2010). Frequency tuning and intensity coding of sound in the auditory periphery of the lake sturgeon, *Acipenser fulvescens*. J. Exp. Biol., 213:1567-1578.
- 199. Kane, A. S., Song, J., Halvorsen, M. B., Miller, D. L., Salierno, J. D., Wysocki, L. E., Zeddies, D., Popper, A. N. (2010). Exposure of fish to high intensity sonar does not induce acute pathology. J. Fish Biol., 76:1825-1840.
- 200. Slabbekoorn, H., Bouton, N, van Opzeeland, I., Coers, A., ten Cate, C., and Popper, A. N. (2010). A noisy spring: the impact of globally rising underwater sound levels on fish. Trends in Ecology & Evolution, 25:419-427. doi:10.1016/j.tree.2010.04.005
- 201. Jørgensen, J. M. and Popper, A. N. (2010). The inner ear of lungfishes. In: Jørgensen, J. M. and Joss, J., (eds.) *The Biology of Lungfishes*. Pp. 489-498. CRC Press, Boca Raton, FL
- 202. Popper A.N. (2011) Auditory System Morphology. In: Farrell A.P., (ed.), *Encyclopedia of Fish Physiology: From Genome to Environment*, volume 1, pp. 252–261. San Diego: Academic Press.
- 203. Popper, A. N. and Casper, B. M. (2011). Fish bioacoustics An introduction. In: Farrell A.P., (ed.) *Encyclopedia of Fish Physiology: From Genome to Environment*, volume 1, pp. 236-243. San Diego: Academic Press.
- Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (2011). Rethinking sound detection by fishes. Hear. Res., 273: 25-36. doi:10.1016/j.heares.2009.12.023
- 205. Deng, X., Wagner, H.-J., and Popper, A. N. (2011). The Inner Ear and its Coupling to the Swim Bladder in the Deep-Sea Fish *Antimora rostrata* (Teleostei: Moridae). Deep Sea Research, part I, 58:27-37. LINK
- 206. Halvorsen, M.B., Casper, B.M., Woodley, C.M., Carlson, T.J., and Popper, A.N. (2011). Predicting and mitigating hydroacoustic impacts on fish from pile installations. NCHRP Research Results Digest 363, Project 25-28, National Cooperative Highway Research Program, Transportation Research Board, National Academy of Sciences, Washington, D.C. Link
- 207. Meyer, M., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2012). Coding of sound direction in the auditory periphery of the lake sturgeon, *Acipenser fulvescens*. J. Neurophysiol., 107:658-665.
- 208. Halvorsen, M. B., Zeddies, D. G., Ellison, W. T., Chicoine, D. R., and Popper, A. N. (2012). Effects of mid-frequency active sonar on fish hearing. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., 131:599-607. DOI: 10.1121/1.3664082.
- 209. Casper, B.M., Halvorsen, M. B., and Popper, A. N. (2012). Are sharks even bothered by a noisy environment? Pages 93-98 334 *in* A. N. Popper and A.D. Hawkins, editors. The Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. New York: Springer Science + Business Media.
- 210. Cott, P. A., Popper, A. N., Mann, D. A., Jorgenson, J. K., and Hanna, B. W. (2012). Impacts of river-based air-gun seismic activity on northern fishes. In A. N. Popper and A.D. Hawkins, editors. The Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. New York: Springer Science + Business Media. Pp. 367-370.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 22 of 45

- 211. Halvorsen, M. B., Casper, B. M., Carlson, T. J., Woodley, C. M., and Popper, A. N. (2012)
 Assessment of barotrauma injury and cumulative sound exposure level in salmon after exposure to impulsive sound. In A. N. Popper and A.D. Hawkins, editors. The Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. New York: Springer Science + Business Media. Pp. 235-238.
- 212. Fay, R. R. and Popper, A. N. (2012). Fish hearing: New perspectives from two "senior" bioacousticians. Brain, Behaviour and Evolution 792:215-217. DOI: 10.1159/000338719 Link
- 213. Halvorsen, M. B., Casper, B. M, Woodley, C. M., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2012). Threshold for onset of injury in Chinook salmon from exposure to impulsive pile driving sounds. PLoS ONE, 7(6) e38968. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0038968. Link
- 214. Casper, B. M., Popper, A. N., Matthews, F., Carlson, T. J., and Halvorsen, M. B. (2012). Recovery of barotrauma injuries in Chinook salmon, *Oncorhynchus tshawytscha* from exposure to pile driving sound. PLoS ONE, 7(6): e39593. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0039593. Link
- 215. Halvorsen, M. B., Casper, B. M., Matthews, F., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2012). Effects of exposure to pile driving sounds on the lake sturgeon, Nile tilapia, and hogchoker. Proceedings of the Royal Society B. 279, 4705-4714 doi: 10.1098/rspb.2012.154. Link.
- 216. Deng, X., Wagner, H.-H., and Popper, A. N. (2013). Interspecific variations of inner ear structure in the seep-sea Fish family Melamphaidae. Anatomical Record. 296, 1064-1082. DOI 10.1002/ar.22703
- 217. Halvorsen, M. B., Zeddies, D. G., Chicoine, D., and Popper, A. N. (2013). Effects of low frequency naval sonar exposure on three species of fish. JASA Express Letters, 134(2), EL206-210. Link
- 218. Casper, B. M., Smith, M. E., Halvorsen, M. B., Sun, H., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2013). Effects of exposure to pile driving sounds on fish inner ear tissues. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology A, 166:352-360. Link
- 219. Casper, B. M. Halvorsen, M. B., Mathews, F., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2013). Recovery of barotrauma injuries resulting from exposure to pile driving sounds in two sizes of hybrid striped bass. PLoS ONE, 8(9): e73844. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0073844 Link
- 220. Popper, A.N., Hawkins, A.D., Fay, R.R., Mann, D., Bartol, S., Carlson, T., Coombs, S., Ellison, W.T., Gentry, R., Halvorsen, M.B., Løkkeborg, S., Rogers, P., Southall, B.L., Zeddies, D., Tavolga, W.N. (2014) Sound Exposure Guidelines for Fishes and Sea Turtles: A Technical Report prepared by ANSI-Accredited Standards Committee S3/SC1 and registered with ANSI. ASA S3/SC1.4 TR-2014. Springer and ASA Press, Cham, Switzerland. Link
- 221. Popper, A. N., Carlson, T. J., Casper, B. M., and Halvorsen, M. B. (2014). Does man-made sound harm fishes. Journal of Ocean Technology, 9(1): 8-20.
- 222. Hawkins, A. D., and Popper, A. N. (2014). Assessing the impacts of underwater sounds on fishes and other forms of marine life. Acoustics Today 10(2):30-41. Link
- 223. Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2014). A brief history of SHAR. In: Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (eds.) Perspectives in Auditory Research, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 1-8.
- 224. Popper, A. N. (2014). From cave fish to pile driving: A tail of fish bioacoustics. In: Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (eds.) Perspectives in Auditory Research, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 467-492.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 23 of 45

- 225. Song, J., Collin, S., and Popper, A.N. (2015). The sensory world of fish and fisheries: Impact of human activities—An international conference to evaluate the effects of environmental changes on the sensory world of fish/aquatic animals and fisheries. Integrative Zoology, 10(1):1-3. DOI: 10.1111/1749-4877.12111
- 226. Hawkins, A. D., Pembroke, A., and Popper, A. N. (2015). Information gaps in understanding the effects of noise on fishes and invertebrates. Reviews in Fish Biology and Fisheries. 25:39-64. DOI 10.1007/s11160-014-9369-3.
- 227. Dooling, R. J., Leek, M., and Popper, A. N. (2015). Effects of noise on fishes: What we can learn from humans and birds. Integrative Zoology 10(1):28-37. DOI: 10.1111/1749-4877.12094
- 228. Dale, J. J., Gray, M. D., Popper, A. N., Rogers, P. H., and Block, B. A. (2015). Hearing thresholds of swimming Pacific bluefin tuna *Thunnus orientalis*. Journal of Comparative Physiology A., 201:441-454. DOI 10.1007/s00359-015-0991-x.
- 229. Dahl, P. H., de Jong, C. A. F., and Popper, A. N. (2015). The underwater sound field from impact pile driving and its potential effect on marine life. Acoustics Today 11(2):18-25. Link
- 230. Rogers, P. H., Hawkins, A. D., Popper, A. N., Fay, R. R., Gray, M. D. (2016). Parvulescu revisited: Small tank acoustics for bioacousticians. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp 933-941.
- 231. Sisneros, J. A., Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D., Fay, R. R. (2016). Auditory evoked potential audiograms compared to behavioral audiograms in aquatic animals. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, 1049-1056.
- 232. Krebs, J., Jacobs, F., and Popper, A. N. (2016) Avoidance of pile-driving noise by Hudson River sturgeon during construction of the New NY Bridge at Tappan Zee. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 555-563.
- 233. Gray, M. D., Rogers, P. H., Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D., Fay, R. R. (2016). "Large" tank acoustics: How big is big enough? In: Popper AN, Hawkins AD (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York pp. 363-369.
- 234. Popper, A. N., Carlson, T. J., Gross, J. A., Hawkins, A. D., Zeddies, D., Powell, L., and Young, J. (2016). Effects of seismic airguns on pallid sturgeon and paddlefish. In: Popper AN, Hawkins AD (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 871-878.
- 235. Vigness-Raposa, K. J., Scowcroft, G., Miller, James H., Ketten, D. R., and Popper, A. N. (2016) Discovery of Sound in the Sea: Resources for educators, students, the public, and policy makers. . In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 1183-1190.
- 236. Popper, A. N., Moese, M., Rollino, J., Krebs, J., Racca, R., Martin, B., Zeddies, D., MacGillivray, A., and Jacobs, F. (2016). Pile driving at the New Bridge at Tappan Zee: Potential environmental impacts. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp., 861-870.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 24 of 45

- 237. Krebs, J., Jacobs, F., Conway, R., Popper, A. N., Moese, M., Rollino, J., Racca, R. Martin, B., MacGillivray, A. (2016). Methods for predicting potential impacts of pile-driving noise on endangered sturgeon during bridge construction. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 565-572.
- 238. Jacobs, F., Krebs, J., and Popper, A. N. (2016) A change in the use of regulatory criteria for assessing potential impacts of sound on fishes. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 497-503.
- 239. Hawkins, A. D., and Popper, A. N. (2016). Developing sound exposure criteria for fishes. . In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 431-439.
- 240. Casper, B. N., Carlson, T. J., Halvorsen, M. B., and Popper, A. N. (2016) Effects of impulsive pile-driving exposure on fishes. In: Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D. (eds.) Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life, II, Springer Science+Business Media, New York, pp. 125-132.
- 241. Martin, S. B., and Popper, A. N. (2016). Short- and long-term monitoring of underwater sound levels in the Hudson River (New York, USA). The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 139:1886-1897. DOI: 10.1121/1.4944876
- 242. Lucke, K., Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D., Akamatsu, T., André, M., Branstetter, B. K., Lammers, M., Radfor, C. A., Stansbury, A. L., and Mooney. T. A. (2016). Auditory sensitivity in aquatic animals. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 139:3098-3101 http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/1.4952711
- 243. Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (2016). It Started in Hawai'i Kai: Reminiscences of 43 Years (and Counting) of Collaboration and Friendship. In: Sisneros, J. A. (ed.) Fish Hearing and Bioacoustics: An Anthology in Honor of Arthur N. Popper and Richard R. Fay, Springer International Publishing, Chaim, Switzerland, pp. 31-52.
- 244. Yost, W. A. and Popper, A. N. (2016). Comparative hearing: Honoring Dick Fay. Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics 126, http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/2.0000223.
- 245. Streever, B., Raborn, S. W., Kim, K. H., Hawkins, A. D., and Popper, A. N. (2016) Changes in fish catch rates in the presence of airgun sounds in Prudhoe Bay, Alaska. Arctic 69:346-358. DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.14430/arctic4596
- 246. Popper, A. N., Gross, J. A., Carlson, Thomas J., Skalski, John, Young, John V., Hawkins, Anthony D., Zeddies, David (2016) Effects of exposure to the sounds from seismic airguns on pallid sturgeon and paddlefish. PLoS ONE 11(8): e0159486. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0159486. Link
- 247. Dooling, R. J. and Popper, A.N. (2016). Some lessons from the effects of highway noise on birds. Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics, 27(1) http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/2.0000244
- 248. Dooling, R. J. and Popper, A.N. (2016). Technical Guidance for Assessment and Mitigation of the Effects of Highway and Road Construction Noise on Birds. Caltrans http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/noise/pub/caltransBirdReport_6_15_2016.pdf
- 249. Erbe, C., Sisneros, J., Thomsen, F., Hawkins, A., and Popper (2016). Overview of the Fourth International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics, 27 http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/2.0000256

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 25 of 45

- 250. Vigness-Raposa, K. J., Scowcroft, G., Morin, H., Knowlton, C., Miller, J. H., Ketten, D. R., and Popper, A. N. (2016). Discovery of sound in the sea: Resources for decision makers. Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics, 27 http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/2.0000257
- 251. Morin, H., Vigness-Raposa, K J., Knowlton, C., Scowcroft, G., Miller, J. H., Ketten, D. R., and Popper, A. N. (2016). Implementing multiple digital platforms to effectively communicate research on underwater acoustics. Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics, 27 http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/2.0000255
- 252. Lucke, K., Scowcroft, G., Winter, H. V., Knowlton, C., Lam, F.-P. A., Hawkins, A., and Popper, A. N. (2016). International harmonization of approaches to define underwater noise exposure criteria and needs of the international regulatory community. *Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics*, 27(1), 070010. http://asa.scitation.org/doi/pdf/10.1121/2.0000287
- 253. Hawkins, A. D. and Popper, A. N. (2017). A sound approach to assessing the impact of underwater noise on marine fishes and invertebrates. ICES Journal of Marine Science, 74:635-651 http://dx.doi.org/10.1093/icesjms/fsw205
- 254. Popper, A.N. (2017). Auditory system morphology. In Reference Module in Life Sciences, Elsevier, ISBN: 978-0- 12-809633-8, http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809633-8.03030-2
- 255. Popper, A. N. and Casper, B. M. (2017). Fish bioacoustics: An introduction, In Reference Module in Life Sciences, Elsevier, ISBN: 978-0-12-809633-8, http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809633-8.03028-4
- 256. Casper, B. M., Halvorsen, M. B., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2017). Onset of barotrauma injuries related to number of pile driving strike exposures in hybrid striped bass. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 141: 4380-4387. http://dx.doi.org/10.1121/1.4984976.
- 257. Gee, K, L, and Popper, A. N. (2017). Improving academic mentoring relationships and environments. Acoustics Today, 13(3) 27-35. http://acousticstoday.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/Gee.pdf
- 258. Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. D. (2018). The importance of particle motion to fishes and invertebrate. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 143: 470-488. https://doi.org/10.1121/1.5021594
- 259. Slabbekoorn, H., Dooling, R. J., and Popper, A. N. (2018). Man-made sounds and animals. In: Slabbekoorn, H., Dooling, R. J., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R.R. (eds). *Effects of Anthropogenic Noise on Animals*. Springer International, Cham, pp. 1-22.
- 260. Hawkins, A. D., and Popper, A. N. (2018). Effects of man-made sound on fishes. In: Slabbekoorn, H., Dooling, R. J., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R.R. (eds). *Effects of Anthropogenic Noise on Animals*. Springer International, Cham, pp. 145-177.
- 261. Hawkins, A. D. and Popper, A. N. (2018). Directional hearing and sound source localization by fishes. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 144: 3329-3350. https://doi.org/10.1121/1.5082306
- 262. Moore, P. and Popper, A. N. (2019). Heptuna's contributions to biosonar. Acoustics Today, 15(1): 44-52. https://acousticstoday.org/heptunas-contributions-to-biosonar/

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 26 of 45

- 263. Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. D. (2019). An overview of fish bioacoustics and the impacts of anthropogenic sounds on fishes. Journal of Fish Biology, 94:692-713. https://doi.org/10.1111/jfb.13948
- 264. Hawkins, A. D., Chapman, C., Fay, R.R., Horner, K., Popper, A. N., and Sand, O. (2019). The pioneering contributions of Per Stockfleth Enger to fish bioacoustics. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 145, 1596-1599. https://doi.org/10.1121/1.5095405
- 265. Popper, A. N. (2019). Fish: Hearing, lateral lines (mechanisms, role in behavior, adaptations to life underwater). In Cochran, J. Kirk; Bokuniewicz, J. Henry; Yager, L. Patricia (Eds.) Encyclopedia of Ocean Sciences, 3rd Edition. vol. 2, pp. 270-276, Elsevier. ISBN: 978-0-12-813081-0
- 266. Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D., and Halvorsen, M. C. (2019). Anthropogenic sound and fishes. A Report Prepared for the Washington State Department of Transportation, Olympia, WA. http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/research/reports/800/anthropogenic-sound-and-fishes
- 267. Popper, A. N., Hawkins, A. D., Sand, O., and Sisneros, J. A. (2019). Examining the hearing abilities of fishes. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 146, 948-955. https://doi.org/10.1121/1.5120185
- 268. Erbe, C., Sisneros, J., Thompsen, F., Lepper, P., Hawkins, A., Popper, A. N. (2019). Overview of the Fifth International Conference on the Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life. Proceedings of Meetings on Acoustics, 37(1), 001001. https://doi.org/10.1121/2.0001052
- 269. Hawkins, A. D., Johnson, C., Popper, A. N. (2020). Setting of sound exposure criteria for fishes. The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 147:1762-1777. https://doi.org/10.1121/10.0000907
- 270. Dahl, P. H., Jenkins, A. K., Casper, B., Kotecki, S. E., Bowman, V., Boerger, C., Dall'Osto, D. R., Babina, M. A., Popper, A. N. (2020). Physical Effects of Sound Exposure from Underwater Explosions on Pacific Sardines (*Sardinops sagax*). The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 147:2383-2395. https://doi.org/10.1121/10.0001064.

Books

- Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1980). *Comparative Studies of Hearing in Vertebrates*. Springer-Verlag, New York
- Tavolga, W.N., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1981). *Hearing and Sound Communication in Fishes*. Springer-Verlag, New York
- Atema, J., Fay, R.R., Popper, A.N., and Tavolga, W.N. (eds.). (1988). *Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Webster, D.B., Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (1992). *Evolutionary Biology of Hearing*, Springer Verlag, New York.
- Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. eds. (2012). *The Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. eds. (2016). *The Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life II*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. ISBN: 978-1-4939-2980-1
- Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N., Series Editors, *Springer Handbook of Auditory Research*, multivolume published by Springer-Verlag starting in 1992.
 - Volume 1: Webster, D.B., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1992). *The Mammalian Auditory Pathways: Neuroanatomy*. Springer Verlag, New York.
 - Volume 2: Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1992). *The Mammalian Auditory Pathway: Neurophysiology*. Springer Verlag, New York.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 27 of 45

- Volume 3: Yost, W.A., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1993). *Human Psychophysics*. Springer Verlag, New York.
- Volume 4: Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (1994). *Comparative Hearing: Mammals*. Springer Verlag, New York.
- Volume 5: Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1995). *Hearing by Bats*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 6: Hawkins, H.L., McMullen, T.A., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1996). *Auditory Computation*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 7: Van De Water, T., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1996). *Clinical Aspects of the Auditory System*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 8: Dallos, P., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1996). *The Cochlea*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 9: Rubel, E., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1998). *Development of the Auditory System*. Springer-Verlag. New York.
- Volume 10: Hoy, R., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (1998). *Comparative Hearing: Insects. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 11: Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (1999). *Comparative Hearing: Fishes and Amphibians*. Springer-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 12: Au, W., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (2000). *Hearing by Whales and Dolphins*. *Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 13: Dooling, R.J., Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (2000). *Comparative Hearing: Reptiles and Birds. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 14: Keats, B., Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (2002). *Genetics and Auditory Disorders. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 15: Oertel, D., Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (2002). *Integrative Functions in the Mammalian Auditory Pathway. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 16: Megela Simmons, A., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (2002). *Acoustic Communications. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 17: Bacon, S., Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (2004). *Compression: From Cochlea to Cochlear Implants. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 18: Greenberg, S., Ainsworth, W., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (2004). *Speech Processing in the Auditory System. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 19: Highstein, S. M, Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (eds.). (2004). *The Vestibular System. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 20: Zeng, F.-G., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (2004). *Auditory Prostheses. Springer*-Verlag, New York.
- Volume 21: Bullock, T. H., Hopkins, C, D., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2005). *Electroreception*. Springer, New York, in press.
- Volume 22 Manley, G.A., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (eds.). (2004). *Evolution of the Vertebrate Auditory System. Springer*, New York.
- Volume 23: Parks, T. N., Rubel, E. W, Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds.). (2004). *Development and Plasticity of the Central Auditory System*. Springer, New York.
- Volume 24: Plack, C. J., Oxenham, A. J, Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds.). (2005). *Pitch: Neural Coding and Perception*. Springer, New York.
- Volume 25: Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (eds.). (2005). *Sound Source Localization*. Springer, New York.
- Volume 26: Kelley, M. W., Wu, D. K., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds.). (2005). *Development of the Inner Ear*. Springer, New York.
- Volume 27: Eatock, R-A., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds.). (2006). *Vertebrate Hair Cells*. Springer, New York.
- Volume 28: Narins, P. M., Feng, A. S., Fay, R. R. and Popper, A. N. (eds.). (2007). *Hearing and Sound Communication in Amphibians*. Springer, New York.

- Volume 29: Yost, W. A., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2008). *Auditory Perception of Sound Sources*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://www.springer.com/biomed/neuroscience/book/978-0-387-71304-5
- Volume 30: Manley, G. A., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2008). *Active Processes and Otoacoustic Emissions in Hearing*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://www.springer.com/biomed/neuroscience/book/978-0-387-71467-7
- Volume 31: Schacht, J., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2008). *Auditory Trauma, Protection, and Repair*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://www.springer.com/biomed/neuroscience/book/978-0-387-72560-4
- Volume 32: Webb, J. F., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2008). *Fish Bioacoustics*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://www.springer.com/life+sciences/animal+sciences/book/978-0-387-73028-8
- Volume 33: Salvi, R. J., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2008). *Hair Cell Regeneration, Repair, and Protection*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 34: Gordon-Salant, S., Frisina, R. D., Popper, A. N., and Ray, R. R. (eds). (2010). *The Aging Auditory System*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 35: Meddis R., Lopez-Pevada, E., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2010). <u>Computational Models of the Auditory System</u>. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 36: Riess Jones, M., Fay, R.R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2010). *Music Perception*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 37: Florentine, M., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2011). *Loudness*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 38: Ryugo, D. K., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2011). *Auditory and Vestibular Efferents*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 39: Zeng, F.-G., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2011). *Auditory Prostheses: New Horizons*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 40: Le Prell, C. G., Henderson, D., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2012). *Noise-Induced Hearing Loss: Scientific Advances*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 41: Trussell, L. O., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2012). *Synaptic Mechanisms in the Auditory System*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 42: Werner, L. A., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (eds). (2012). *Human Auditory Development*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4614-1421-6
- Volume 43: Poeppel, D., Overath, T., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R.R. (eds). (2012). *The Human Auditory Cortex*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4614-2314-0
- Volume 44: Eggermont, J., Zeng, F-G., Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R (eds). (2012). *Tinnitus*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.: http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4614-3728-4
- Volume 45: Cohen, Y. E., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (eds). (2012). *Neural Correlates of Auditory Cognition*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. http://dx.doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4614-2350-8
- Volume 46: Puria, S., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2013). *The Middle Ear: Science, Otosurgery, and Technology*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 47: Kral, A., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2013). *Deafness*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 48: Coombs, S., Bleckmann, H., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2014). *The Lateral Line*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 49: Köppl, C., Manley, G. A., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2014). *Insights from Comparative Hearing Research*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. Link
- Volume 50: Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (2014). *Perspectives on Auditory Neuroscience*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. Link
- Volume 51: Surlykke, A., Nachtigall, P. E., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2014). *Biosonar*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York. Link

- Volume 52: Dabdoud, A., Fritzsch, B., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2015). *The Primary Auditory Neurons of the Mammalian Cochlea*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 53: Suthers, R., Fitch, W. T., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2016). *Vertebrate Sound Production and Acoustic Communication*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 54: Fenton, B., Grinnell, A. D., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2016). *Bat Bioacoustics*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 55: Pollack, Gerald S., Mason, Andrew, Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2016). *Insect Hearing*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 56: Popelka, G. R., Moore, B. C. J., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2016). *Hearing Aids*. Springer Science+Business Media, LLC, New York.
- Volume 57: Bass, A. H., Sisneros, J. A., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2016). *Hearing and Hormones*. Springer International Publishing, LLC, New York.
- Volume 58: Le Prell, C. G., Lobarinas, E., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2016). *Translational Research in Audiology, Neurotology, and the Hearing Sciences*. Springer Nature, New York.
- Volume 59: Clack, J. A., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A.N. (2016). *Evolution of the Vertebrate Ear Evidence from the Fossil Record*. Springer Nature, New York.
- Volume 60: Middlebrooks, J. C., Simon, J. Z., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2017). *The Auditory System at the Cocktail Party*. Springer Nature, New York.
- Volume 61: Kraus, N., Anderson, S., White-Schwock, T., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2017). *The Frequency-following Response: A Window into Human Communication*. Springer Nature, New York.
- Volume 62: Manley, G. A., Gummer, A. W., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2017) *Understanding the Cochlea*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 63: Quam, R. M, Ramsier, M. A., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2017) *Primate Hearing and Communication*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 64: Cramer, K., Coffin, A., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2017). *Auditory Development and Plasticity*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 65: Oliver, D.L. Cant, N. B., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A.N. (2018. *Mammalian Auditory Pathways: Synaptic Organization and Microcircuits*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 66: Slabbekoorn, H., Dooling, R. J., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R.R. (2018). *Effects of Anthropogenic Noise on Animals*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 67: Dent, M. L., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A.N. (2018). *Rodent Bioacoustics*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 68: Lee, A. KC, Wallace, M. T., Coffin, A. B., Popper, A. N., and Fay R. R. (2019). Multisensory Processes: The Auditory Perspective. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 69: Siedenburg, K., Saitis, C., McAdams, S., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2019). *Timbre: Acoustics, Perception, and Cognition*. Springer International, Cham.
- Volume 70: Carlson, B. A., Sisneros, J. A., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2020). *Eletroreception: Fundamental Insights from Comparative Approaches*. Springer International Cham.
- Volume 71: Sakata, J. T., Woolley, S. C., Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2020). *The Neuroethology of Birdsong*. Springer International Cham.
- Volume 72: Helfer, K. S., Bartlett, E. L., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2020). *Aging and Hearing: Causes and Consequences*. Springer International Cham.
- Volume 73: Litovsky, R. Y., Goupell, M. J., Fay, R. R., an Popper, A. N. (2020). *Binaural Hearing*. Springer International Cham.

Other Publications

- Popper, A.N., Gilbert, D., and Gilbert, P.W. (1977). Dedication to Albert L. Tester. Amer. Zool. 17:289-291.
- Popper, A.N. (1978). Review of *Sound Reception in Fish* ed. by A. Schuijf and A.D. Hawkins. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 63:644.
- Popper, A.N. (1983). Review of *BioAcoustics: A Comparative Approach* ed. by B. Lewis. Q. Rev. Biol. 59:94-95.

- Popper, A.N. (1985). Review of *Echolocation in Whales and Dolphins* by P.E. Purves and G.E. Pilleri. Trends Neurosci. 8:36-37.
- Popper, A.N. (1986). Review of *Time Resolution in Auditory Systems* ed. by A. Michelsen. Q. Rev. Biol. 61:434.
- Popper, A.N. (1989). Review of *Hearing in Vertebrates: A Psychophysics Data Book* by R.R. Fay. Brain Behav, Evol. 33:365.
- Popper, A.N. (1989). Review of *The Evolution of the Amphibian Auditory System* ed by B. Fritzsch, M.J. Ryan, W. Wilczynski, T.E. Hetherington, and W. Walkowiak. Brain Behav. Evol. 35:126-127.
- Popper, A.N. (1989). Review of WordPerfect Office (software). Bull. Ecol. Soc. Am. 70:202-203.
- Popper, A.N. (1991). Review of WordPerfect Office 3.0 (software). Bull. Ecol. Soc. Am. 72:142-143.
- Popper, A.N. (1991). Making the Effort. (Editorial on hiring of minority faculty). Diamondback, Oct. 2, 1991.
- Popper, A.N. (1993). Review of Acoustics for Biologists, Amer. Zool..
- Popper, A.N., and Ostrovsky, M. (1994). Introduction to Symposium on Comparative Sensory Biology. Sensoryne Systeme 8:5-6. (in Russian).
- Popper, A.N. (1998). Animal Communication. In: McGraw-Hill 1999 Yearbook of Science & Technology, McGraw-Hill, New York, pp. 21-23.
- Popper, A., Ketten, D.R., Dooling, R., Yost, W., Brill, R., Ridgway, S., and Schusterman, R. (1999). Effects of Anthropogenic Sounds on Hearing in Marine Animals. ONR Tech. Rpt., pp. 52-89.
- Popper, A. N., Fay, R. R., Gruber, S., Tavolga, W. N. (2005). Arthur A. Myrberg, Jr. 1933-2005. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 118:3377.
- Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. D. (2019). Impacts of Anthropogenic Noise on Fishes. Briefing Paper, Fisheries Society of the British Isles (FSBI). https://go.umd.edu/UC6

Conferences and Symposia Organized

- Workshop on "Comparative Animal Communications," May, 1976, Ann Arbor, Michigan (with W. Stebbins).
- Conference on "Comparative Studies of Hearing in Vertebrates," November 1978, Honolulu Hawaii, at meeting of Acoustical Societies of America and Japan (with R. R. Fay).
- Conference on "Hearing and Sound Communication in Fishes," June, 1980, Sarasota, Florida (with W.N. Tavolga and R.R. Fay).
- Workshop on "Comparative Hearing," February 1985, St. Petersburg Beach, Florida, at meeting of Association for Research in Otolaryngology (with R. Turner).
- Conference on "Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals," June 1985, Sarasota, Florida (with J. Atema, R.R. Fay and W.N. Tavolga).
- Conference on "Comparative Evolutionary Biology of Hearing," May, 1990, Sarasota, Florida (with R.R. Fay and D.B. Webster).
- Symposium on Animal Bioacoustics, May 1991 meeting of Acoustical Society of America, Baltimore, MD.
- Workshop on "Recent Advances in Understanding of Fish Hearing," October, 1991, Airlie House, Warrenton, VA.
- Symposium on "Evolution of Hearing" for February 1992 meeting of Association for Research in Otolaryngology, St. Petersburg Beach, FL. (with R.R. Fay and D.B. Webster).
- Symposium on "Interactions Between the Auditory and Mauthner Cell Systems" for August 1992 meeting of the International Congress of Neuroethology, Montreal, Canada (with R. Eaton).
- Workshop on Using sound to modify fish behavior at power-production and water-control facilities@ December 12-13, 1995, Portland, OR. (with T. Carlson).
- Workshop on Cetacean Acoustics at 1996 meeting of the Association for Research in Otolaryngology, St. Petersburg Beach, FL. Feb. 8, 1996 (with H. Hawkins and W. Dolphin).
- Karger Workshop, 1996 meeting of J.B. Johnston Club (Society for Neurosciences): AEvolution of Sensory Systems, November 21, 1996 (with R.R. Fay).
- Animal Behavior Society, organizer of 1997 annual meeting at University of Maryland, College Park.

- Fish Bioacoustics: Sensory Biology, Behavior, and Practical Applications, Chicago, IL, May 30-June 2, 2001 (with R. R. Fay and J. Webb).
- "International Conference on Acoustic Communication by Animals," College Park, MD, July 27-30, 2003.
- "Workshop on Setting Standards for Sound Exposure of Fish," multiple meetings 2005-2007 funded by National Marine Fisheries Service and other organizations and done in conjunction with Acoustical Society of America.
- "Fish Bioacoustics: A tribute to Arthur Myrberg," symposium at the joint meeting of the Acoustical Society America and the Acoustical Society of Japan, November 29, 2006, Honolulu, HI.
- International Conference on "Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," Nyborg, Denmark, August 13-17, 2007
- 2nd International Conference on "Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," Cork, Ireland, August 15-20, 2010. 10th meeting of International Congress of Neuroethology, August 2012, College Park, MD. Chair, local organizing committee. (www.icn2012.umd.edu)
- 3rd International Conference on "Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," Budapest, Hungry, August 11-15, 2013.
- 4th International Conference on "Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," Dublin, Ireland, July 10-16, 2016.
- 5th International Conference on "Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," Den Haag, The Netherlands, July 2-9, 2019 (www.an-2019.org).

Abstracts and Presentations (Selected)

- Popper, A.N. (1973). Temporary threshold shift in the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 54:327.
- Renaud, D.L., and Popper, A.N. (1973). Sound localization in the bottlenose porpoise, *Tursiops truncatus*; signals presented in the horizontal plane. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 54:308.
- Popper, A.N. (1976). Patterns of hair cell orientation in the sacculus and lagena of two species of teleost fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 59:591.
- Popper, A.N. (1976). Hair cell orientation patterns in the sacculus and lagena of several teleost species. Am. Zool. 16.
- Popper, A.N., and Renaud, D.L. (1977). Sound localization in the bottlenose porpoise. Anim. Behav. Soc., June.
- Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1977). Modes of stimulation of the teleost ear. Anim. Behav. Soc., June.
- Popper, A.N. (1977). Comparative structure of the fish ear. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 61:576.
- Popper, A.N. (1977). A comparative electron microscopic study of the otolithic organs in fishes. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 3:9.
- Popper, A.N., and Clarke, N.L. (1978). Forward and backward masking in the goldfish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 64:584.
- Fay, R.R., and Popper, A.N. (1978). Structure and function in teleost auditory systems. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 64:51.
- Coombs, S., and Popper, A.N. (1979). Hearing thresholds for two teleost fish species with different peripheral auditory systems. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 65.
- Popper, A.N. (1979). Inner ear auditory receptors in Osteoglossomorph fishes. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 5:29.
- Coombs, S., and Popper, A.N. (1980). Auditory sensitivity and inner ear structure in *Osteoglossum bicirrhosum*. Amer. Zool. 20:785.
- Coombs, S., and Popper, A.N. (1981). Psychophysical tuning curves for different fish species. Association for Research in Otolaryngology, January.
- Jun, S., Coombs, S., Fay, R.R., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1982). Hearing in the jewel cichlid. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 71:S45.
- Platt, C., Popper, A.N., and Saidel, W.M. (1982). Organization of auditory receptors in cypriniform teleosts is unique among fishes. Western Nerve Net, March 29-30, 1982.
- Saidel, W.M., and Popper, A.N. (1982). The organization of the saccule of *Helostoma temincki*. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 8:39.

- Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1983). Quantitative analysis of hair cell and ganglion proliferation in the fish saccule. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 9:214.
- Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1985). Sensory and non-sensory ciliated epithelia in the lamprey ear. Conference on "Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals," Sarasota, FL, June 24-29.
- Rogers, P.H., Cox, M., Popper, A.N., and Saidel, W.M. (1985). Model for the peripheral processing of sound in bony fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 78:s13-s14.
- Popper, A.N., and Hoxter, B. (1985). Post-embryonic hair cell production in the saccule of a teleost fish. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 11:451.
- Cox, M., Rogers, P.H., Popper, A.N., Saidel, W.M., and Fay, R.R. (1986). Frequency regionalization in the fish ear. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 79:S80.
- Popper, A.N., Saidel, W.M., and Uhlman, M. (1986). Neuronal innervation of individual sensory hair cells in the saccular epithelium of a teleost fish. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 12:1263.
- Cox, M., Rogers, P.H., Popper, A.N., and Saidel, W.N. (1986). Anatomical effects of intense tone stimulation in the ear of bony fishes. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 81:S7
- Popper, A.N., Saidel, W.M., and Uhlman, M. (1987). Afferent and efferent innervation of sensory hair cells in the saccular epithelium of a fish. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 10:103.
- Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1987). The morphology of nerve terminals innervating the saccule in the cichlid fish, *Astronotus ocellatus*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 10:103.
- Cox, M., Rogers, P.H., Popper, A.N., Saidel, W.M., Fay, R.R., and Coombs, S. (1987). Anatomical effects of intense tone stimulation in the goldfish ear: dependence on sound pressure level and frequency. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 89:S7.
- Popper, A.N., Presson, J.C., and Saidel, W.M. (1987). Innervation of the saccular epithelium of a fish. Neuroscience 22:S131.
- Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1987). Neurogenesis in the eighth nerve of an adult teleost: Source of the new neurons. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 13:1660.
- Presson, J.C., Popper, A.N. and Hoxter, B. (1988). Proliferating neuroepithelial cells in the saccule of an adult fish: source of new hair cells. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 11:155-156.
- Presson, J.C., Lindsey, S. and Popper, A.N. (1989). Ultrastructure of precursor cells in the peripheral statoacoustic system of an adult fish *Astronotus ocellatus*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 12:75.
- Edds, P.L., Presson, J. and Popper, A.N. (1989). A comparison of saccular innervation in the goldfish (Carassius *auratus*), an otophysan, and the oscar (*Astronotus ocellatus*), an acanthopterygian. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 12:77-78.
- Popper, A.N., Edds, P. and Presson, J.C. (1989). Comparative innervation of otolithic receptors in fishes. In *Neural Mechanisms of Behavior*, Proceedings of the 2nd International Congress of Neuroethology. Georg Thieme Verlag, Stuttgart.
- Edds, P.L., and Popper, A.N. (1990). Comparisons of lagenar and saccular innervation in the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*), and in the oscar (*Astronotus ocellatus*). Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 13:363.
- Presson, J.C., Jones, M., and Popper, A.N. (1990). Four modes of growth in saccular eighth nerve fibers in a post-embryonic fish. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 13:365.
- Saidel, W.M., Yan, H.Y., Chang, J.S., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1991). The effects of gentamicin sulfate on the otolithic sensory epithelia of the fish *Astronotus ocellatus*. I. The SEM view of sensory hair cells. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 14:96.
- Presson, J.C., Chang, J.S., Yan, H.Y., Saidel, W.M., and Popper, A.N. (1991). The effects of gentamicin sulfate on the otolithic sensory epithelia of the fish *Astronotus ocellatus*. II. The cellular view. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 14:96
- Chang, J., and Popper, A.N. (1991). Ultrastructural comparison of striolar and extrastriolar hair cells of fish utricle. Abstr. Soc. Neurosci. 17:630
- Yan, H.Y., Lombarte-Cererra, A., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Regeneration of sensory hair cells in the inner ear of a teleost fish (*Astronotus ocellatus*) following gentamicin assault. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 15:161.
- Popper, A.N., and Schellart, N.A.M. (1992). Evolution of hearing in fishes. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 15:88.

- Edds., P.L., Carr, C.E., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Anti-Zebrin II immunoreactivity reveals Purkinje cell projections to the octaval nuclei of the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 15:113.
- Presson, J.C., Moses, M., Hieb, H., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Immunocytochemical characterization of cells in the ear of the cichlid fish *Astronotus ocellatus*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 15:145.
- Yan, H.Y., and Popper, A.N. (1992). Comparative hearing capacities of the goldfish (*Carassius auratus*) and oscar (*Astronotus ocellatus*). Am. Soc. Ichthyol. Herpetol., Champaign IL, June.
- Popper, A.N., Presson, J.C., and Lambert, H. (1993). Hair cell addition in the utricle of the postembryonic fish *Astronotus ocellatus*: A test of tone model of type I hair cell development. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 16:18.
- Edds-Walton, P.L., and Popper, A.N. (1993). Afferent projections from the rostral vs caudal saccule of the toadfish, *Opsanus tau*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 16:22.
- Yan, H.Y., and Popper, A.N. (1993). Acoustic intensity discrimination by the cichlid fish *Astronotus ocellatus* (Cuvier). Am. Soc. Ichthyol. Herpetol., Austin, TX, May.
- Lanford, P.J., and Popper, A.N. (1993). Ultrastructural correlates to physiologically distinct hair cell types in the goldfish saccule. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 19:1580.
- Song, J., Yan, H.Y.Y, and Popper, A.N. (1994). Two types of hair cells in the mechanosensory lateral line receptor: Evidence based on ototoxicity sensitivity. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 17:75.
- Lanford, P.J., and Popper, A.N. (1994). Heterogeneity of hair cell populations in the otic endorgans of the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 17:96.
- Hastings, M.C., Finneran, J.J., Popper, A.N., and Lanford, P.J. (1994). Determining the effects of low-frequency sound on the fish auditory system. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 96:3297.
- Presson, J.C., Lanford, P.J., Smith, T., Mentz, C., and Popper, A.N. (1994). Hair cell precursors/support cells in a post-embryonic fish: Characteristics and proliferative capacity. Mechanisms of Sensory Regeneration, Univ. Of Virginia Health Sciences Center, Charlottesville, VA.
- Song, J., Jia, X., and Popper, A.N. (1995) Differences in postembryonic growth and ultrastructure of sensory and supporting cells in canal and superficial neuromasts of lateral line. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 18.
- Lanford, P.J., and Popper, A.N. (1995). Calyx-like afferents in the crista ampullaris of the goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 18.
- Finneran, J.J., Hastings, M.C., Popper, A.N., and Lanford, P.J. (1995). Effects of man-made underwater sound on the auditory organs and lateral line of the oscar (*Astronotus ocellatus*)-Preliminary results. Inter-Noise 95.
- Lanford, P. J., Presson, J. C., and Popper, A. N. (1996). A second type of S-phase cell in the sensory epithelia of the goldfish ear: An ultrastructural analysis. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 19.
- Lanford, P.J., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1996) Cell proliferation in the goldfish ear: A BrdU study. Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci. 781:645-646.
- Lu, Z., Popper, A.N., and Fay, R.R. (1996). Behavioral detection threshold of a teleost fish (*Astronotus ocellatus*) to linear acceleration at various axes. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 19.
- Popper, A.N., Hawkins, H., and Gisiner, R. (1996). What don't we know of Cetacean acoustics? Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 19.
- Lanford, P.J., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1996). Differentiation and expression of S-100 immunoreactivity in sensory hair cells of the vertebrate ear. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 22:1622.
- Lu, Z., Song, J., and Popper, A.N. (1996). Correlation between saccular hair cell orientation pattern and directional response properties of single saccular afferents in a teleost fish. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 22:1818.
- Platt, C., and Popper, A.N. (1996). Sensory hair cell arrays in lungfish inner ears suggest retention of the primitive patterns for bony fishes. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 22:1818.
- Lanford, P.J., Yogarai, J., Mann, D.A., and Popper, A.N. (1997). The expression of a mature hair cell marker is coincident with the formation of otoliths in the ear of the embryonic zebrafish. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 20:5.
- Wilkins, H.R., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (1997). Support cell proliferation in the chick utricle. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 20:134.

- Lu, Z., and Popper, A.N. (1997) Encoding of acoustic particle motion by saccular ganglion cells of a fish: Intracellular recording and tracing. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 23:180.
- Mann, D.A., Lu, Z., and Popper, A.N. (1997) Ultrasound detection by a teleost fish, the American shad. Soc. Neurosci. Abstr. 23:246.
- Wilkins, H.R., Presson, J.C., Popper, A.N., and Dooling, R.J. (1998) Hair cell death in the avian inner ear. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 21:76.
- Borkowski, E.Y., Paoletti, J., Popper, A.N., and Robinson, P. (1999). Ramping-up courses: Faculty experiences using WebCT in classes. First Annual WebCT Conference on Learning Technologies, Vancouver, BC, June 17.
- Popper, A.N., Higgs, D.M., Lu, Z., Mann, D., Hastings, M., and December, C. (1999) Some fish can detect ultrasound B But how? 1999 Meeting of International Brain Research Organization, Jerusalem, July 15.
- Higgs, D.M., and Popper, A.N. (2000) Possible morphological correlates to ultrasound detection by the American shad (*Alosa sapidissima*). Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 23:280.
- Ramcharitar, J., Higgs, D.M., and Popper, A.N. (2000) Comparative study of the inner ear ultrastructure of four species of Western Atlantic sciaenids. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 23:280.
- Popper, A.N., Presson, J., Souza, M., and Wilkins, H. (2000) Age-related changes in the zebrafish saccule. Abstr.. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 23:280.
- Popper, A.N. (2001). The enigma of fish hearing diversity. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 110:2638.
- Popper, A.N. (2001). The impacts of anthropogenic sounds on fishes. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 110:2750.
- Mann, D.A., Tavolga, W.N., Higgs, D.M., and Popper, A.N. (2001). Psychoacoustics of ultrasound detection in clupeids. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 110:2639-2640.
- Meyer, M., and Popper, A.N. (2002) Hearing in "primitive" fish: Brainstem responses to pure tone stimuli in the lake sturgeon, *Acipenser fulvescens*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 24.
- Plachta, D.T.T., and Popper, A.N. (2002) Brainstem responses of American shad, *Alosa sapidissima*, to ultrasound. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. February.
- Ramcharitar, J., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Structure-function relations in the ear of silver perch: The story of a hearing specialist. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. February.
- Deng, X., Wagner, H.-J., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Messages from the bottom of the Atlantic Ocean: Comparative studies of anatomy and ultrastructure of the inner ears of several Gadiform deepsea fishes. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 25:101.
- Coffin, A., Presson, J.C., and Popper, A.N. (2002). Unconventional myosins in vertebrate hair cells. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. February.
- Popper, A.N., McCauley, R.D., and Fewtrell, J. (2002). Impact of anthropogenic sounds on fishes. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 112:2431.
- Popper, A.N., Kane, A.S., and Smith, M.E. (2002). Biological responses to acoustical stress in fishes. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 112: 2432.
- Meyer, M., Plachta, D.T.T., and Popper, A. N. (2003). When a "primitive" fish listens to tones: Encoding of sound in the auditory periphery of the shortnose sturgeon, *Acipenser brevirostrum*. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 26:47.
- Razdan, P., Coffin, A.B., and Popper, A.N. (2003). The effects of gentamicin damage on hair cell death and regeneration in the oscar inner ear. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 26:151.
- Smith, M.E., Kane, A.S., and Popper, A.N. (2003). Relationship between acoustical stress and hearing sensitivity in fishes. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 26:164.
- Deng, X., Wagner, H.-J. and Popper, A.N. (2003). Variation in hair cell bundle characteristics in the saccule and lagenar of Macrouridae deep-sea fishes. Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 26:257.
- Buran, B.N., Deng, X., and Popper, A.N. (2003). Are there structural variations in the ears of two deepsea eels that inhabit different depths? Abstr. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 26:257.
- Smith, M. E., Ketten, D. R., Hastings, M. C., Popper, A. N. (2004). Head holes help hearing: the auditory periphery of *Otocinclus*. Abst. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 27: 336.
- Popper, A. N., Halvorsen, M. C., Miller, D., Smith, M. E., Song, J., Wysocki, L. E., Hastings, M. C., Kane, A. S., and Stein, P. (2005). Effects of surveillance towed array sensor system (SURTASS) low frequency active sonar on fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 117:2440.

- Wysocki, L. E., Smith, M. E., Popper, A. N., Davidson, J., Frankel, A., Ellison, W., Ford, F., and Bebak-Williams, J. (2006) Effects of environmental noise on hearing capabilities of fish. Abst. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 29
- Smith, M. E., Coffin, A. B., Miller, D. L., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Anatomical and functional recovery of the goldfish saccule following noise exposure. Abst. Assoc. Res. Otolaryngol. 29
- Oxman, D., Barnet-Johnson, R., Smith, M. E., Coffin, A. B., Miller, D. L., Josephson, R. and Popper, A. N. (2006). Otolith crystal type affects hearing sensitivity in chinook salmon. Abst. Assn. Res. Otolaryngol. 29
- Popper, A. N. and Fay, R. R. (2006). Anthropogenic sound Introduction and review of the ambient and anthropogenic environment. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 119:3282.
- Halvorsen, M. B., Wysocki, L. E., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Effects of high-intensity sonar on fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 119:3283.
- Mann, D. A, Cott, P. Hanna, B., MacGillivary, A., Austin, M., Smith, M., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Effects of riverine seismic air-gun exposure on fish hearing. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 119:3283.
- Smith, M. E., Wysocki, L. E. and Popper, A. N. (2006). Effects of background sound on fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 119:3283.
- Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2006). Working group on "The effects of sound on fish and turtles: An update. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 119:3284.
- Popper, A.N., Fay, R. R., and Tavolga, W. N. (2006). A history of fish bioacoustic studies. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 120:3055.
- Popper AN. (2006). What do we know about pile driving and fish? In: Proceedings of the 2005 International Conference on Ecology and Transportation, Eds. Irwin CL, Garrett P, McDermott KP. Center for Transportation and the Environment, North Carolina State University, Raleigh, NC: pp. 26-28. (Abstract) http://repositories.cdlib.org/jmie/roadeco/Popper2005a
- Wyslocki, L. E., and Popper, A. N. (2006). The influence of ambient temperature and thermal acclimation on hearing in a eurythermal hearing specialist. J. Acoustic. Soc. Am. 120:3056.
- Meyer, M., Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2006). Investigating hearing in sturgeon: Getting closer to the origin of hearing in vertebrates. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 120:3057.
- Hastings, M. C. and Popper, A. N. (2007). Update on exposure metrics for evaluation of effects of sound on fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 122:3059.
- West, E. W., Dooling, R. J., Popper, A. N., and Buehler, D. M. (2007) Noise impacts on birds: Assessing take of endangered species. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 122:3082.
- Popper, A. N., Løkkeborg, S., and McCauley, R. (2008). Anthropogenic sound potential effects on fish. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., 123:2986.
- Fay, R. R., and Popper, A. N. (2009). Fish hearing and bioacoustics since 1973. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 125, 2485.
- Popper, A. N., and Fay, R. R. (2009). The future of fish bioacoustics. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 125, 2485.
- Halvorsen, M. B., Carlson, T., and Popper, A. N. (2009). Assessment of cumulative sound exposure level as criterion for exposure of fish to impulsive sound. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 125, 2488.
- Meyer, M., Popper, A.N. and Fay, R. R. (2009). Peripheral neural coding strategies for spectral analysis and sound source location in the nonteleost bony fish, *Acipenser fluvescens*. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 125, 2506.
- Deng, X, Wagner, H.-J., and Popper, A. N. (2009). Comparative studies of the auditory periphery in deep-sea fish. J. Acoust. Soc Am. 125:2507.
- Cott, P. A., Popper, A. N., Mann, D., and Jorgensen, J. K. (2010). Effects of airgun seismic activity on riverine fishes. Canadian Conference for Fisheries Research, Winnipeg, MB January 7-9, 2010
- Halvorsen, M. B., Woodley, C. M. Casper, B. M., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2011). Derivation of a response severity index model for physiological quantification of fish response to impulsive sound. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 129, 2435.
- Casper, B. M., Matthews, F. M., Halvorsen, M. B., Carlson, T. J., and Popper, A. N. (2011). Recovery from exposure to pile driving signals by Chinook salmon. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 129, 2436.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 36 of 45

Invited Presentations (Selected)

- "Sonic mechanisms in fish." Symposium on "Sound Production Mechanisms in Vertebrates." American Association for the Advancement of Science, December 1972.
- "The structure and function of the elasmobranch auditory system." Symposium on "Elasmobranch Biology," American Society of Zoologists, June 1976.
- "Organizations of the inner ear and auditory processing." Symposium on "CNS and Behavior of Bony Fishes," Society for Neuroscience. 1977
- "A comparative study of the otolithic organs in fishes." Workshop on Sensory Organs. Scanning Electron Microscopy 1978 meeting.
- "Structure and function in teleost auditory systems." Symposium on "Comparative Studies of Hearing in Vertebrates." Joint meeting of the Acoustical Society of America and Acoustical Society of Japan, Honolulu, HI, November 1978.
- "Behavioral measures of odontocete hearing." NATO Advanced Study Institute, "Animal Sonar Systems," Isle of Jersey, UK, April 1979.
- "Acoustic Detection by Fishes." NATO Advanced Study Institute on "Environmental Physiology of Fishes," Bishop's University, Lennoxville, Quebec, Canada, July 1979.
- "Structure and function in the ear." Symposium on "Hearing and Sound Communication in Fishes," Sarasota, FL, April 1980.
- "Morphological basis of sound reception in Actinopterygian fishes." In symposium on "Evolutionary Morphology of Actinopterygian Fishes," Meeting of American Society of Zoologists, Seattle, WA, December 1980.
- "Comparative observations on the fine structure of the fish ear, and experiments on temporal neural coding in the fish auditory system." Symposium on "Perspectives on Modern Auditory Research: A Conference in Honor of E.G. Wever," Princeton, NJ, May 23-25, 1982.
- "Problems and perspectives on hearing in fish." Symposium on "International Conference on Comparative Physiology: Comparative Physiology of Sensory Systems," Crans Montana, Switzerland, June 14-18, 1982.
- "The role of the fish ear in sound processing." Conference on "Sensory Biology of Aquatic Animals," Sarasota, FL, June 24-29, 1985.
- "Inner ear and lateral line functional relations to supracellular organization." Symposium on "Neurobiology and Evolution of the Lateral Line," Bielefeld, West Germany, August 31 to September 4, 1987.
- "Peripheral anatomy of the auditory system: structure, function, innervation and post-embryonic development." Swammerdam Lecture at the Royal Dutch Academy of Science, September 20, 1989.
- "The evolution of the ear in fish: A hairy enigma." Invited lecture in honor of the 50th anniversary of the Parmly Hearing Institute, Loyola University of Chicago, June 11, 1993.
- "Postembryonic regeneration and generation of sensory hair cells in the octavolateralis system of bony fishes." In symposium on "Hearing Research Trust Workshop: Repair and Regeneration in the Inner Ear," Kent, UK, July 8-11, 1993.
- "The not-so-silent world of fishes." Invited presentation to Washington, DC, Regional Chapter of the Acoustical Society of America, October 20, 1994
- "Determining the effects of low-frequency sound on the fish auditory system." In symposium on Animal Bioacoustics: Research Methodology, December 1994 meeting of Acoustical Society of America (Hastings, M.C., Finneran, J.J., Popper, A.N., and Lanford, P.J.)
- "The octavolateralis system in fishes: Structure and function." In symposium on "A Sensory Ecology and Physiology of Zooplankton, "Honolulu, HI, January 7, 1995.
- "Sensory hair cells of the ear: A hairy enigma." BUMP Program at Marine Biological Laboratory, Woods Hole, MA, March 9, 1995.
- "Hair cell heterogeneity in fishes: A new perspective on the evolution of the vertebrate ear." NIDCD, August 8, 1995.
- "Perspectives on the role of the department chair." University of Maryland System Chairperson's Conference, Baltimore, MD, October 27, 1995.

Arthur Popper 5/7/2020 Page 37 of 45

- "Moths, herring, and hearing." J. B. Johnston Club Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA, October 24, 1997.
- "Hair cells, herring, and hake: Insights into the evolution of hearing." Bloedel Center, University of Washington, Seattle, WA, October 1997.
- "Hair cells, herring, and hake: Insights into the evolution of hearing." Department of Biological Sciences, University of Aarhus, Aarhus, Denmark, February 4, 1998.
- "Hearing and non-hearing effects of noise." Office of Naval Research meeting on Effects of Human-Generated Noise on Marine Animals, February 10-12, 1998, Arlington, VA.
- "Structure and function in the teleost auditory system." Institute for Zoology, University of Vienna, Vienna, Austria, May 4, 1998.
- "Hair cells and the evolution of vertebrate hearing," Neuroscience Program, University of Vienna, Vienna, Austria, May 7, 1998.
- "Structure and function in the teleost auditory system." Department of Biology, University of Bonn, Bonn, Germany, June 12, 1998.
- "Fish hearing and the evolution of the vertebrate auditory system." Institute of Animal Bioacoustics, Odense University, Odense, Denmark, June 18, 1998.
- "Structure-function relationships in fish auditory systems." Keynote talk at Second International Meeting on Fish Otolith Applications and Research, Bergen, Norway, June 21, 1998.
- "Hair cells, herring, and the evolution of the vertebrate auditory system." 1999 Gilbert Lecture, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY, March 4, 1999.
- "Sound detection and processing by fish: recent advances." Plenary talk at First International Conference on Sensory Processing of the Aquatic Environment, Heron Island, Australia, March 1999.
- "Fish and the evolution of the vertebrate auditory system." Gordon Research Conference on Neuroethology: Behavior, Evolution, and Neurobiology, Oxford, UK, September 1999.
- "Hair cells, herring, and hearing." Department of Biology, Villanova University, Philadelphia, PA, October 28, 1999.
- "Vignettes on a theme of fish hearing." Department of Biology, Dalhousie University, Halifax, Nova Scotia, November 4, 1999.
- "Herring hearing." Tel Aviv University, Tel Aviv, Israel, January 11, 2000.
- "Evolution of hair cells." In Symposium on Evolution of Hearing at ARO Meeting, February 23, 2000.
- "How not to be mentored." Department of Communications, University of Maryland, College Park, MD, March 30,2000.
- "Scientific Integrity: Mentoring and other issues." Committee on the History and Philosophy of Sciences, University of Maryland, College Park, MD, May 4, 2000.
- "Hair cells, herring, and evolution of hearing." Institute of Experimental Medicine, Czech Academy of Sciences, Prague, Czech Republic, July 28, 2000.
- "Ultrasound detection by fishes: Hearing capabilities and structural basis." 12th International Symposium on Hearing, Mierlo, The Netherlands, August 4-9, 2000.
- "Fish bioacoustics: An overview." Workshop on Effects of Seismic Signals, Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada, September 7-8, 2000.
- Discussant on impact of air-guns and other seismic disturbances on marine organisms. Ad Hoc Meeting of Biologists for Seismic Studies, Newport Beach, CA, December 6-7, 2000.
- "Auditory mechanisms of teleost fishes: What we can learn from zebrafish and herring." Marine Biological Laboratory, Woods Hole, MA, March 30, 2001.
- "Sound detection by fishes." University of Rome at Tor Vergata, Rome, Italy, May 3, 2001.
- "The ear of teleost fishes: Form and function." Anatomisches Institut, Graduate School of Neural and Behavioural Sciences, Universität Tübingen, Tübingen, Germany, August 8, 2001.
- Discussant on effects of pingers and other underwater sound sources on marine organisms. Workshop on Mitigation of Interactions Between Dolphins and Fisheries Through the Use of Acoustic Harassment Devices: Effectiveness, Impact, and Possible Alternatives, Rome, Italy, May 4-5, 2001
- "The enigma of fish ear diversity." Acoustical Society of America meeting, Fort Lauderdale, FL, December 3-7, 2001.

- "The impact of anthropogenic sounds on fishes." Acoustical Society of America meeting, Fort Lauderdale, FL, December 3-7, 2001.
- "An icthyocentric view of vertebrate hearing." Seminar, Australian Museum Department of Fish, Sydney, Australia, April 10, 2002.
- "Form and function in the fish auditory system." Seminar, Department of Biology, University of Western Australia, Nedlands, Australia, April 17, 2002.
- "Form and function in the fish auditory system." Seminar, Department of Physics, Curtin University, Perth, Australia, April 24, 2002.
- "Sound detection by fishes: Why and how." Seminar, Institute of Taste, Smell, and Vision, University of Queensland, Brisbane, Australia, May 1, 2002.
- "Sound detection by fishes: Why and how." Seminar, School of Biological Sciences, University of Auckland, Auckland, New Zealand, May 6, 2002.
- "Listening in the deep." Keynote talk at Ecology, Ethology, and Evolution of Fishes, Quebec, Canada, August, 2002.
- "Sound detection by coral reef fishes." First Pan-American/Iberian Meeting on Acoustics and Acoustical Society of America, Cancun, Mexico, December 5, 2002. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 112:2203.
- "History of animal bioacoustics." Keynote speech (with R. Dooling) at First Pan-American/Iberian Meeting on Acoustics and Acoustical Society of America, Cancun, Mexico, December 5, 2002. J. Acoust. Soc. Am. 112:2368.
- "An icthyocentric view of the evolution of vertebrate hearing." School of Marine Sciences, University of South Florida, St. Petersberg, FL, January 24, 2003.
- "Fish bioacoustics: A response to Dave Barry." Monday Night at Mote series, Mote Marine Laboratory, Sarasota, FL, January 27, 2003.
- "The effects of anthropogenic sound on fish." First International Conference on Acoustic Communication by Animals, College Park, MD, July 25, 2003.
- "Fish hearing." Guest lecturer, course in "Acoustic Communication," University of Southern Denmark, Odense, Denmark, August 15, 2003.
- "Anthropogenic sound in the marine environment,." Guest lecturer, course in "Acoustic Communication," University of Southern Denmark, Odense, Denmark, August 15, 2003.
- "Anthropogenic sound and other tales about fish hearing," Virginia Bloedell Hearing Center, University of Washington, Seattle, February 16, 2004.
- "Auditory capabilities and mechanisms of teleost fishes," NOAA, Seattle WA April 28, 2004.
- "Effects of noise on the auditory system of fishes," National Aquarium in Baltimore, September 23, 2004
- "Fish bioacoustics," University of Lund, Sweden, October 18, 2004.
- "Effects of anthropogenic sounds on fishes," University of Windsor, Canada, November 12, 2004.
- "Effects of anthropogenic sound on fishes," Aquarium of the Pacific, Long Beach, CA Dec. 17, 2004.
- "A fish-ear view of vertebrate hearing," Invited keynote talk at 4th Annual Eastern Auditory Retreat, July 15, 2005.
- "What do we know about pile driving and fish?" invited talk at 2005 International Conference on Ecology and Transportation, San Diego, CA, August 30, 2005.
- "Auditory mechanisms of fishes," Distinguished Lecture, Hatfield Marine Laboratory, Oregon State University, Newport, OR, June 26, 2006.
- "Anthropogenic sound in the marine environment," invited lecture at 2006 course in Animal Bioacoustics, Kerteminde, Denmark, August 27, 2006.
- "Effects of seismic air-guns on fish," invited lecture at International workshop on "Impacts of Seismic Survey Activities on Whales and Other Marine Biota," Dessau, Germany, September 6-7, 2006.
- "Effects of high intensity sonar on fish," Keynote talk at conference on "Effects of Mid-Frequency Sonar on Marine Fishes," at Duke University, April 19-20, 2007.
- "Comparative and Evolutionary Biology of Fish Hearing," invited seminar George Washington University, Department of Biology, October 26, 2007.
- "Effects of Active Sonar on Fish," invited lecture, Washington DC Chapter of the Acoustical Society of America, November 14, 2007.

- "Fish hearing: From evolution to application," invited seminar, Dept. of Hearing and Speech Science, University of Maryland, November 20, 2007.
- "Effects of human-generated sound on fish," invited lecture, Shanghai Fisheries University, Shanghai, China, November 30, 2007.
- "Effects of human-generated (anthropogenic) sound on fish," invited lecture, Chinese Academy of Sciences (Institute for Zoology), December 6, 2007.
- "Anthropogenic sounds Potential effects on fish," invited talk, Acoustics '08, Paris, France, June 30, 2008.
- "Effects of Human-Generated Sound on Fish," invited keynote talk, ASA Meeting on Animal Acoustics, August 12, 2008.
- "Effects of Noise on Aquatic Life," invited talk, Oil and Gas Producers Assn. meeting, October 15, 2008
- "Effects of Human-Generated Sound on Fish: Experimental Studies" (A. N. Popper and M. B. Halvorsen), invited talk, Fifth International Conference on Bio-Acoustics, Loughborough, UK, April 1, 2009.
- "The Future of Fish Bioacoustics," Acoustical Society of America meeting on Fish Bioacoustics, Portland, OR, May 18, 2009.
- "Why Otoliths? The Rest of the Story!" keynote talk at 4th International Otolith Symposium, Monterey, CA, August 24, 2009.
- "Effects of Airgun Seismic Activity on Riverine Fishes." Cott, P.A., A.N. Popper, D.A. Mann, and J.K. Jorgenson. Invited presentation Canadian Conference for Fisheries Research. Winnipeg, MB January 7-9, 2010.
- "Current laboratory research on effects of pile-driving sound on fish and current NCHRP results" Popper, A.N., Song, J., Carlson, T., Sanderson, D., Halvorsen, M., Transportation Research Board symposium, Jan.12, 2010.
- "Translational Fish Bioacoustics" presentation at closing of Parmly Hearing Institute, Loyola Univ. of Chicago, April 17, 2010.
- "Effects of mid-frequency sonar on fish" Halvorsen, M. B., Zeddies, D. A., Ellison, W., Song, J., Chicoine, D. R., and Popper, A. N. (2010). J. Acoust. Soc. Am. (abst.), 127:1755.
- "Preliminary analysis of effects of pile driving sounds on fish" Popper, A. N., Casper, B. N., Song, J., Sanderson-Kilchenstein, D., Carlson, T., and Halvorsen, M. B. (2010). J. Acoust. Soc. Am. (abst), 127:1753
- "Anthropogenic noise: Is it an issue for elasmobranch fishes?" Casper, B. M., and Popper, A. N. (2010). J. Acoust. Soc Am., 127, 1753-1754.
- "Translational Bioacoustics: From Hawaiian Squirrelfish to the Tappan Zee Bridge" invited seminar, Feb. 3, 2011, Department of Biomedical Engineering, The Johns Hopkins University.
- "Effects of Noise Pollution on Fish Behavior and Physiology" invited talk at the Animal Behavior Society and International Society for Ethology in Bloomington, IN on August 2, 2011.
- "Overview on the Effects of Anthropogenic Sounds on Animals" invited talk at the 10th meeting of the International Bioacoustics Congress in La Rochelle, France on September 13, 2011.
- "Fishes vs. Wind Farms (and Other Things that Make Noise in the Sea" invited talk Boston University Department of Biomedical Engineering, April 20, 2012.
- "Effects of Man-Made Sound on Fishes" plenary talk at "Fish Passage 2012," Amherst MA, June 5, 2012. http://fishpassage.ecs.umass.edu/Conference2012/.
- "From Blind Cave Fish to the Tappan Zee Bridge A Tale of "Translational Neuroethology," plenary talk, International Congress of Neuroethology, College Park, MD, August 6, 2012.
- "Effects of Anthropogenic sound on Fishes," invited lecture, University of Leiden (Netherlands), October 16, 2012.
- "Recent Advances in Fish Hearing" invited lecture, University of Leiden (Netherlands), October 18, 2012.
- "Barotrauma Effects on Fishes in response to Impulsive Pile Driving" Invited lecture, Transportation Research Board 92nd meeting (Washington, D.C), January 14, 2013.
- "Ears, Hearing (and Zebrafish)" keynote talk at Zebrafish Husbandry Workshop, Aquaculture 2013 Meeting, Nashville, TN Feb. 25, 2013.

- "My scientific 'evolution' over 50 years from blind cave fish to the Tappan Zee Bridge (with various digressions!)" Department of Entomology, University of Maryland, March 1, 2013.
- "Effects of Man-Made Sounds on Fishes" University of Bonn, Germany, March 12, 2013.
- "Sound and Aquatic Animals" U.N. Workshop on Underwater Noise and its Impacts on Marine and Coastal Biodiversity, 25 27 February 2014, London, UK.
- "Effects of Man-Made Noise on Fishes and Invertebrates: Gap Analysis Research Priorities" U. N. Workshop on Underwater Noise and its Impacts on Marine and Coastal Biodiversity, 25 27 February 2014, London, UK.
- Dahl, P. H., Reinhall, P.G., Popper, A. N., Hastings, M. C., and Ainslie, M. A. (2014). Underwater sound from pile driving: what it is and why does it matter. Hot Topics in Acoustics. Meeting of the Acoustical Society of America, Providence, RI, May 7, 2014. Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 135:2312.
- Lucke, K., Winter, E., Lam, F.-P., Scowcroft, G., Hawkins, A. D., and Popper, A. N. (2014). International harmonization of approaches to define underwater noise exposure criteria. Meeting of the Acoustical Society of America, Providence, RI, May 9, 2014. Journal of the Acoustical Society of America, 135:2404.
- The Potential Effects of Man-Made Sounds on Industry (2014). Invited talks (2) to BP in Anchorage and Prudhoe Bay, August 11 and 13, 2014.
- Popper, A. N., Casper, B. M., Halvorsen, M. H., and Carlson, T. (2015) Injury responses in the hybrid striped bass as a function of number of pile driving strike exposures. Oceanoise2015, Barcelona, Spain, May 13, 2015.
- Popper, A. N., Martin, B., Racca, R., MacDonnell, J. (2015) Noise levels in shallow waters near the Hudson River's Tappan Zee Bridge. Oceanoise2015, Barcelona, Spain, May 11, 2015.
- Popper, A. N. (2015). Man-made noise and aquatic life: Data, data gaps, and speculation. Invited tutorial, Acoustical Society of America, May 18, 2015.
- Popper, A. N. (2018). Fish bioacoustics and effects of man-made
- Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. D. (2018). A brief history fo fish bioacoustics. Invited talk, Acoustical Society of America, Minneapolis, MN. May 8, 2018.
- Popper, A. N. (2018) Fish bioacoustics and anthropogenic sound. U.S. Geological Survey, Columbia, MO, invited talk, August 15, 2018.
- Popper, A. N. (2019). Fish Bioacosutics and anthropogenic sound. Invited presentation, Fisheries and Oceans, Canada, Canadian Science Advisory Secretariat, Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada (via webEX), May 28, 2019.
- Additional invited research seminars at various colleges and universities include City College of New York, Lehigh University, University of Tennessee, University of California at Berkeley, University of California at Santa Barbara, San Francisco State University, University of Maryland (Dept. of Psychology), University of Maryland at Baltimore County, Georgetown University (Dept. of Biology), SUNY (Downstate Medical Center), George Washington University, Hawaii Institute of Marine Biology, University of Chicago, Harvard University, Indiana University, Oregon State University, Georgetown University, University of Washington, University of Southern Denmark, and University of South Florida.

Recent Public Service and Consulting

- Montgomery County Noise Control Advisory Board, member, 1993-1995; chair, 1995-1998. Review and analysis of use of sound for controlling behavior of salmon for Office of Technology Assessment, U. S. Congress (1994).
- "Do fish hear with an ear?" Keynote address, Thirty-Fifth Connecticut Junior Science and Humanities Symposium, University of Connecticut, Storrs, CT, March 21, 1994.
- "Hearing in fish and humans." Invited talk, Jewish Community Center of Greater Washington science and technology class, Rockville, MD, October 17, 1994,
- Review and analysis of use of fish sensory response and prospects for developing behavioral guidance technologies for Office of Technology Assessment, US Congress, 1995.

- Guest Lecturer to 21st Century Biology Class, Sidwell Friends School, Washington, DC, November 28, 2000.
- New England Aquarium, Science Advisory Panel for "Sounds of the Sea" exhibit, 1997-2000.
- Review and analysis of SURTASS LFA for U.S. Navy, 1999-2000.
- Review of "A Marine Seismic Surveys: Analysis and Propagation of Air-gun Signals; and Effects of Air-Gun Exposure on Humpback Whales, Sea Turtles, Fishes and Squid" for Australian Petroleum Production and Exploration Association, 1999-2000.
- Advisory Panel, Events-Based-Science-II project, Montgomery County Public Schools, 1995-2000.
- Reviewer, Connecticut State high school science assessment exam, 1994-2006.
- Review and analysis of SURTASS LFA Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement, U. S. Navy, 2006-2008.
- Review of effects of seismic air guns on snow crabs, Department of Fisheries and Oceans, New Brunswick, Canada, 2004-2007.
- Review of effects of underwater sound on murrelets, SAIC, 2011.
- Review of development of Atlantic and Pacific training facilities, Naval Undersea Warfare Center (NUWC), 2011.
- Development of Environmental Impact Statement, Tappan Zee Bridge, New York, 2010 2012.
- Workshop on Effects of Noise on Fish, Fisheries, and Invertebrates in the U. S. Atlantic and Arctic from Energy Industry Sound-Generating Activities. For Bureau of Ocean Energy Management (BOEM), under contract to Normandeau Associates, 2011-2012
- U.S. Representative at United Nations meeting: Expert Workshop on Underwater Noise and its Impacts on Marine and Coastal Biodiversity, 25 27 February 2014, London, UK
- U.S. Geological Service, "Fish hearing and the effects of underwater noise," invited seminar Sept. 15, 2018]. New York State Wind Far Meeting (NYSERDA), "Fish Hearing and Effects of Underwater Noise, invited presentation, Nov. 12-14, 2018
- Webinar, "Potential Effects of Sound on Marine Fishes," Nov. 27, 2018. https://dosits.org/decision-makers/webinar-series/webinars-2018/potential-effects-sound-fishes/

Recent Reports

- Hastings, M. C. and Popper, A. N. (2005). Effects of sound on fish. California Department of Transportation Contract 43A0139 Task Order, 1. https://www.nrc.gov/docs/ML1434/ML14345A573.pdf
- Popper, A. N. (2005). A review of hearing by sturgeon and lamprey. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Portland District. Link
- Popper, A. N., Carlson, T. J., Hawkins, A. D., Southall, B. L., and Gentry, R. L (2006). *Interim Criteria* for Injury of Fish Exposed to Pile Driving Operations: A White Paper Link
- Popper, A. N. and Casper, B. M. (2012) Analysis of tissues of fish exposed to pile driving. AECOM Pile Installation Demonstration Project, Tappan Zee Bridge. Report Link
- AKRF, AECOM, Popper, A. N. (2012). Biological assessment for the Tappan Zee Hudson River Crossing Project. Prepared for Federal Highway Administration. Report Link
- Krebs, J, Jacobs, J., and Popper, A. N. (2012). Presence of Acoustic-Tagged Atlantic Sturgeon and Potential Avoidance of Pile-Driving Activities During the Pile Installation Demonstration Project (PIDP) for the Tappan Zee Hudson River Crossing Project. Submitted to the New York State Thruway Authority.
- Hawkins, A.D., and Popper, A.N. (2012). Effects of noise on fish, fisheries, and invertebrates in the U.S. Atlantic and Arctic from energy industry sound-generating activities: Literature synthesis. BOEM Contract M11PC00031by Normandeau Associates, Inc. Report Link
- Normandeau Associates, Inc. 2012. Effects of Noise on Fish, Fisheries, and Invertebrates in the U.S. Atlantic and Arctic from Energy Industry Sound-Generating Activities. A Workshop Report for the U.S. Dept. of the Interior, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management. Contract # M11PC00031. 72 pp. plus Appendices. http://ter.ps/4v4
- Popper, A.N. 2012. Fish Hearing and Sensitivity to Acoustic Impacts. Appendix J. Atlantic OCS Proposed Geological and Geophysical Activities, Mid-Atlantic and South Atlantic Planning Areas, Draft

- Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement. OCS EIS/EA BOEM 2012-005. March 2012. 2 vols. Report Link
- Popper, A. N., Carlson, T. J., Gross, J., and Young, J. (2012). Effects of Seismic Surveys in Lake Sakakawea on Pallid Sturgeon and Other Key Fish Species. Prepared for Hess Corporation by CSA International.

 Report link
- Popper, A. N.., Halvorsen, M. B., Casper, B. M, and Carlson, T. J. (2013). U. S. Dept. of the Interior, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management, Headquarters, Herndon, VA. Effects of Pile Sounds on Non-Auditory Tissues of Fish. OCS Study BOEM 2012-105. 60 pp. Link reference OCS Study BOEM 2012-105
- Luke, K., Winter, E., Lam, F.-P., Scowcroft, G., Hawkins, A., and Popper, A. N. (2013). Report of the workshop on international harmonization of approaches to define underwater noise exposure criteria (Budapest, Hungary, August 17, 2013). Report C197.13, IMARES, Wageningen UR for Rijkswaterstaat Noordzee, Martine Graafland, De Hague, The Netherlands
- Dooling, R. J. and Popper, A.N. (2016). Technical Guidance for Assessment and Mitigation of the Effects of Highway and Road Construction Noise on Birds. Caltrans http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/env/noise/pub/caltransBirdReport_6_15_2016.pdf
- Popper, A. N. and Hawkins, A. D. (2018). White Paper Investigation of the Potential Use of Sound to Guide Outmigrating American Eels Near Iroquois Dam and the Beauharnois Power Canal on the St. Lawrence River. EPRI, Palo Alto, CA 3002014636. https://www.epri.com/#/pages/product/3002014636/

Recent News & Quotes

- http://news.nationalgeographic.com/news/2005/11/1103_051103_whale_sonar.html
- http://news.nationalgeographic.com/news/2005/11/1107_051107_croaker.html
- About mentoring http://betweenthecolumns.umd.edu/2008/09/10/teaches/
- Sonar studies http://www.physorg.com/news102869243.html
- Noise and fish http://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2003/02/030210075908.htm
- Administrating science http://www.the-scientist.com/article/display/57537/
- Noise meeting http://newsdesk.umd.edu/global/release.cfm?ArticleID=2212
- Noise and fish http://www.newscientist.com/blogs/shortsharpscience/2011/05/constant-noise-of-offshore-win.html
- Noise and fish http://news.discovery.com/animals/fish-human-noise-110516.html
- Ocean noise http://seattletimes.nwsource.com/html/localnews/2015040407_oceannoise13m.html
- Ocean noise (NPR audio) http://media.aprn.org/2011/ann-20110519-07.mp3
- Noise and squid: http://www.miamiherald.com/2011/05/19/2224080/in-an-ocean-of-noise-sea-life.html
- Retirement: Senior Professors: Not When to Retire, but How (Chronicle of Higher Education)
- Ocean noise: http://stateimpact.npr.org/texas/2012/03/22/with-noise-pollution-growing-at-sea-a-team-in-texas-looks-for-answers/
- Effects of noise on humans: http://www.huffingtonpost.com/seth-shostak/loud-music-effects b 1764562.html
- Fish sounds and effects of environmental noise (7/31/2013) WYPR 88.1 FM in Baltimore and affiliated stations: http://www.wypr.org/stationprogram/environment-focus-tom-pelton-2
- 'Bubble curtains' guard fish from hammering sound waves (12/27/2013) USA Today
- Acoustics Today editorship: http://ter.ps/AcoustToday
- Terrapin Teachers (UTeach Replication): http://cmns.umd.edu/news-events/news/1739
- Terrapin Teachers (Diamondback): http://www.diamondbackonline.com/news/campus/article_e10499f4-9926-11e3-a678-0017a43b2370.html
- "Why do we hear"? http://www.prx.org/pieces/128308-700-fathoms-under-the-sea (under Promo + Web Extra Tab) interview on PRX.org
- "A tribute to Eugenie Clark (May 4, 1922 Feb. 25, 2015), UMD Professor Emerita in Biology." https://cmns.umd.edu/news-events/features/2829
- Inside Science (August 5, 2015): "Are Ocean Creatures Tormented by human-Made Noise"?
 http://www.insidescience.org/content/are-ocean-creatures-tormented-human-made-noise/3081
- "The Not-So-Silent World," Physics Central Buzz Blog (Sept. 11, 2015)
- http://www.physicscentral.com/buzz/blog/index.cfm?postid=2745010119530994649
- Sports Fishing Magazine (January 13, 2017) http://www.sportfishingmag.com/noise-factor-fishing-skills#page-4
- *Hakai* Magazine (April 4,2018) https://www.hakaimagazine.com/news/marine-noise-is-mentally-and-physically-disturbing-fish/
- The Scientist (May 11, 2018) https://www.the-scientist.com/?articles.view/articleNo/54547/title/Proposed-

ys-Raise-Concern- e (March 15, 2019		

Courses Taught at University of Maryland

Semester	Semester Course Number Course Name		Number of Students	
Spring, 1988				
Spring, 1989	Zool. 328V Zool. 708	Neuroethology (with Dr. Ottinger)	25	
Spring, 1991	Zool.328V	Neuroethology (with Dr. Ottinger)	25	
Fall, 1991	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology 1 (with Dr. Olek)	400	
Spring, 1992	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology 1 (with Dr. McMillan)	350	
Fall, 1992	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology 1 (with Dr. Benson)	400	
Spring, 1993	Zool. 328V Zool. 708	Neuroethology (with Dr. Ottinger)	20	
Fall, 1993	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology 1 (with Dr. Benson)	420	
Spring, 1994	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology 1 (with Dr. Benson)	400	
Fall, 1994	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology 1 (with Dr. Ades)	440	
Spring 1995	Zool. 608B	Bioethics Seminar (with Dr. Dooling)	10	
Fall, 1995	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology I (with Dr. Presson)	400	
G : 1006	Zool. 328F	Vertebrate Structure and Function (with Dr. Infantino)	40	
Spring 1996	Zool. 708	Ethics in Biological Research (with Dr. Dooling)	10	
G : 1007	Zool. 328F	Vertebrate Form and Function (with Dr. Infantino)	35	
Spring, 1997	Zool. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	10	
1997-1998		Sabbatical		
Fall, 1998	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology I (with Dr. Jarvis)	325	
Spring, 1999	Zool. 328F	Vertebrate Structure and Function (with Dr. Infantino)	40	
Fall, 1999	Biol. 105	Principles of Biology	340	
g : 2 000	Zool. 328F	Vertebrate Form and Function (with Dr. Infantino)	60	
Spring, 2000	Zool. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research	10	
Fall, 2000	BSCI 105	Principles of Biology	350	
G : 2001	BSCI 34	Vertebrate Form and Function (with Dr. Infantino)	60	
Spring, 2001	BIOL. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	20	
Fall, 2001	BIOL. 608W	Scientific Writing	10	
Spring, 2002	BIOL. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	15	
Spring 2003	BSCI 105	Principles of Biology	350	
	BIOL. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling	15	
Smring 2004	BSCI 105	Principles of Biology (with Dr. Ades)	350	
Spring 2004	BIOL. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	15	
Spring 2005	BSCI 105	Principles of Biology (with Dr. O'Connor)	350	
	BIOL. 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	15	
Carrier = 2006	BSCI 207	Diversity and Integrative Biology of Life (with Dr. Kent)	150	
Spring 2006	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	15	
Spring 2007	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	15	
Spring 2008	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Jane Clarke)	18	
Spring 2009	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Dooling)	24	
Spring 2009	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. DeShong)	14	
Spring 2010	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. DeShong)	19	
Spring 2011	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Moss)	11	
Fall 2011	HONORS 269O	Noise, the Environment, and Life	10	
Spring 2012	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Moss)	11	
Spring 2014	BIOL 600	Ethics in Scientific Research (with Dr. Moss)	12	